








 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 

 

 
       

 

 

 

 

       

 

 

 
 

DECEMBER 5, 2011 

1



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 

BOARD MEETING                      STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                                       5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 

                                                         DECEMBER 5, 2011 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

E. Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – November 21, 2011 

2. *Approval of Bills 

3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 

F. Information Items 

1. Employees of the Month 

2. Superintendent’s Comments 

3. Board Comments/Announcements 

4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

G. Unfinished Business: 

1. Approval of Policy 5200 – Pupil Services – Attendance 

 

H. New Business 

1. Receive and Place on File the Audit Report for 2010-2011 

2. First Reading of Policy 4300 – Human Resources – Professional Growth/Staff Development 

3. First Reading of Policy 6400 – Educational Services – Staff Development 

4. Approval of Rule 5200.1 – Pupil Services – Attendance, Tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism 

5. Delete Rule 6400.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Staff Development – Staff Development Framework 

6. Delete Policy 6401 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment – Staff Development:  Accountability 

7. Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with MEA for 2012-2013 Nurses Contract 

8. Appointment of Negotiation Team for Nurses Contract 

9. Approval of Revised School Calendar for 2012-2013 and 2013-2014 

10. Approval of Personnel Actions: Leave of Absence, Resignation Notification Incentive and Voluntary Separation 

Program 

11. Negotiations and Legal Issues (Executive Session) 

  

I. Reports 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Risk Management Report 

 

J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Board Holiday Reception on Wednesday, December 14, 2011 at 6 p.m. at Millard Lumber 

2. Legislative Luncheon on Thursday, December 15, 2011 at 11:30 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 19, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

 

2



 

 

 

Agenda 

December 5, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 9, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

5. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, January 16, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 27, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 

given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may be 

deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

3



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 

BOARD MEETING          STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:00 P.M.                             5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 

                                                                 DECEMBER 5, 2011 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items only.  Please 

 make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 

 

*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – November 21, 2011 

(See enclosure.) 

 

*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 

 

*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See enclosure.) 

 

F.1.  Employees of the Month 

 

F.2.  Superintendent’s Comments  

 

F.3. Board Comments/Announcements 

 

F.4.  Report from Student Representatives 

 

G.1.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Policy 5200 – Pupil Services – Attendance (See 

enclosure.) 

 

H.1.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to Receive and Place on File the Audit Report for 2010-

2011 (See enclosure.) 

 

H.2.  First Reading of Policy 4300- Human Resources – Professional Growth/Staff Development (See enclosure.)  

 

H.3.  First Reading of Policy 6400 – Educational Services – Staff Development (See enclosure.) 

 

H.4.   Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Rule 5200.1 – Pupil Services – Attendance, 

Tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism (See enclosure.) 

 

H.5.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Rule 6400.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Staff Development – Staff Development Framework (See enclosure.) 

 

H.6.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to delete Policy 6401 – Curriculum, Instruction, and 

Assessment – Staff Development:  Accountability (See enclosure.) 

 

H.7.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, that the District recognize the MEA as the collective 

bargaining agent for nurses in the District; and further that the District meet and confer with the MEA to negotiate the 

FYE13 employment contract for said employee group at times and places mutually agreed to by the parties (See enclosure.) 

 

 

4



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 

December 5, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

H.8.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to appoint Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, Jim Sutfin and 

Chad Meisgeier for the District’s negotiations team for collective bargaining related to the FYE13 employment contract for 

nurses; and that the Board appoint Chad Meisgeier as the lead negotiator for the team (See enclosure.) 

 

H.9.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the school calendars for 2012-2013 and 2013-

2014 (See enclosure.) 

 

H.10.  Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: Leave of Absence, 

Resignation Notification Incentive and Voluntary Separation Program, (See enclosure.) 

 

H.11.  Negotiations and Legal Issues (Executive Session) 

 

I.  Reports: 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Risk Management Report 

 

J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Board Holiday Reception on Wednesday, December 14, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at Millard Lumber 

2. Legislative Luncheon on Thursday, December 15, 2011 at 11:30 a.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

3. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, December 19, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 9, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

5. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 16, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, January 23, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street  

7. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 6, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, February 20, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 5606 

South 147
th

 Street 

9. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, February 27, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request form is 

given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

L.    Adjournment   All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  

Items may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

5



 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 17 

 
A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of Nebraska.  The 

meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:00 p.m., Monday, November 21, 2011, at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street. 

 

 Present:  Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Mike Kennedy, Linda Poole, Patrick Ricketts, and Todd Clarke 

 

 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, November 18, 2011; a copy of the 

publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of Education and a copy 

of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  Availability of the agenda was 

communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were 

taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the public. 

 

At 6:00 p.m. Dave Anderson called the meeting to order and announced the Public Meeting Act is posted on the wall and available for 

public inspection.  Mr. Anderson asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Roll call was taken and all members were present. 

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Mike Pate, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from November 7, 2011, to approve the 

bills, and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Showcase highlighted students who are National Merit Semi Finalist, and commended students from the three high schools. 

 

Superintendent’s Comments: 

 

1. Thanksgiving break will be Thursday and Friday of this week. 

 

2. Angelo Passarelli continues to meet with the calendar committee, because the group has not yet come to consensus 

at this time.   

 

3. The American School Board Journal has asked Dr. Lutz to join the panel in judging the Magana Awards on 

December 1 and 2, 2011.  He is in the process of reading 33 nominations. 

 

4. There is a meeting on December 16
th

 with the Governor to talk about a variety of topics.  

 

5. Winter break will be December 22, 2011 through January 4, 2012. 

 

6. In December there be a polling exit survey done. 

 

Board Comments: 

 

Mike Pate attended the Metropolitan Area Boards of Education meeting where they talked about the perceptions of the Learning 

Community. 

 

Mr. Pate reported at the Learning Community board meeting last week an amended version of scenario #1 of the redistricting 

boundaries was approved.  He raised some concern about the methodology that went into the amendment of the original scenario one 

indicating that last month the board was in consensus for scenario one\that was presented by MAPA, except for Omaha Public 

Schools, who brought up different scenarios not presented by MAPA.  One suggestion was that the boundary lines should be based on 

student population and the other based on the location of elementary schools. The amended scenario one included input form two of 

the OPS representatives, or who reside within the OPS boundaries, but did not appear to affect the representation but it could not be 

determined at that meeting.  Mr. Pate said he didn’t like the methodology and the way the amendment was done because it was done 

with just two people making a recommendation in their sub-councils upon which then the Executive Committee of the Learning 

Community made the final decision on the recommendation, and this was not the correct protocol.  Mr. Pate voted for the amended 

scenario one, because it didn’t affect sub-council #4 boundaries, which Millard is in. 

 

Linda Poole attended the NASB State Education Convention last week, and also attended the NASB Board of Directors meeting.  

Mrs. Poole reported that she, Dr. Lutz and Amy did their presentation on “lessons learned” at the convention, and she said she  

6



 
 

Board of Education Minutes 

November 21, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

received many positive comments about the presentation.  She thanked Dr. Lutz and Amy Friedman for going with her to North 

Dakota and they went to South Dakota to present on “lessons learned.”  She said it was very important to educate other people. 

 

Mrs. Poole also noted that the Anne Bryant, Executive Director of the National School Boards Association, attended Millard’s 

presentation on “lessons learned.”  Mrs. Poole received an email from Ms. Bryant thanking Linda for sharing the experience in 

Millard.  Mrs. Poole also advised Ms. Bryant that the district was not joining the national affiliate program this year, and Ms. Bryant 

encouraged the district to reconsider and join again. 

 

Mrs. Poole and Dave Anderson attended the session with Governor Heineman, Senator Adams and Dr. Breed on P-16 committee and 

what is going on there.  They also talked about the state assessment system and the upcoming state accountability system.  

 

Mrs. Poole also attended the delegate assembly where no questions came forward on any of the resolutions or standing positions.   

 

Mrs. Poole congratulated Dave Anderson, because he is now officially President-Elect of Nebraska Association of School Boards, and 

next year will be president. 

 

Mrs. Poole made a comment about her disappointment that the bond issue didn’t pass, but more on the media coverage that the district 

received on the bond issue.  She said she wished the World Herald would double check their sources, because in one instance in a 

follow-up story both Dave and Linda were contacted and asked to respond to five questions and then when she responded to the 

questions the paper didn’t use any of what she said.  It was disappointing when a reporter asks for information and then doesn’t print 

it.  If asked again she would have to reconsider whether she would respond to them or not.  

 

Pat Ricketts said he attended the NASB Convention, and said that Dr. Lutz, Amy Friedman, Linda Poole did a great job on “lessons 

learned”, and Chad Meisgeier on legislation.  They all did a good job in their session presentations.  Mr. Ricketts thanked Linda and 

Dave for their roles in the Nebraska Association of School Boards. 

 

Mr. Ricketts attended the session with the Governor and commented that the Governor did use Millard high schools as an example in 

the graduation rates, which all have surpassed his goal. 

 

Mr. Ricketts said he was disappointed that the bond issues didn’t pass, but he was disappointed for the students of Millard.  The lists 

will continue to grow, and both the board and the administration will do everything they can to provide the students with a world class 

education from this world-class community, and continue strategically to move forward with the best interest of the Millard 

community.  Mr. Ricketts commented on the fact that Millard has the second lowest per pupil costs in the Learning Community and 

spends less than the state average, and that Millard has been responsible stewards managing those funds. 

 

Mr. Ricketts said he does question the merits of the phone survey that was done and would like to discuss different surveying methods 

or techniques at a future committee meeting. 

 

Dave Anderson reported that at the NASB Area Membership meeting Mike Kennedy earned a Level III and Mike Pate earned a Level 

VI Award of Achievement from the Nebraska Association of School Boards for their participation in board activities. 

 

Mr. Anderson said the article on the voluntary separation program done by the World Herald was certainly a negative connotation in 

the article, and the community should understand that the slant of the article was to show that some board of education’s do not know 

what the program does, but Millard board members do understand the voluntary separation program, and it has been a negotiated 

benefit, so it could be something amended at a future time.  It has saved millions for the school district he pointed out, and like any 

other program it has to be reviewed, analyzed, and determined if it makes sense for the district. Mr. Anderson indicated it was 

unfortunate that the program was not looked at in its totality, and wished the analysis of the numbers provided to the World Herald 

would have been in an article as well. 

 

Mr. Anderson said in regards to the bond issue the district was beat significantly, and clearly the community has spoken in a variety of  

ways, so the district will survey the voter population as to the reasons and issues, and then the district will have to regroup and 

reprioritize, and will determine the next steps.  Mr. Anderson said the board will certainly listen to the community and adjust 

accordingly. 

 

 

7





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Millard Public Schools 
December 5, 2011 

 

9



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ALDRICH ELEMENTARY135034388851 -71.33 
BELLEVUE WEST HIGH SCHOOL133636388852 276.00 
SCOTT M BOHLKEN133891388853 245.51 
CULLIGAN OF OMAHA106893388855 201.71 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496388856 10,509.85 
HASTINGS HIGH SCHOOL138405388857 100.00 
KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL134284388858 -8,098.14 
LINCOLN SOUTHWEST HIGH SCHOOL132518388859 573.00 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438388860 -19,616.40 
MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL065440388861 -17,917.50 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL065443388862 -15,301.62 
BRIAN L NELSON107732388863 50.00 
PAPILLION/LAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL071567388865 452.00 
PAPILLION/LAVISTA HIGH SCHOOL071567388866 63.00 
PIUS X HIGH SCHOOL108243388867 522.00 
TODD L REESON138504388868 100.00 
SUE Z. BEERS130625388869 3,000.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840388870 2,500.00 
RUDOLPH A VLCEK III135863388872 50.00 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496388875 10,675.86 
HASTINGS HIGH SCHOOL138405388876 275.00 
HY-VEE INC133397388877 2,198.60 
MIDWEST WOODWORKERS,  INC.065326388878 2,899.99 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN108325388879 30.00 
NEBRASKA STATE BANDMASTERS ASSN108325388880 90.00 
NEBRASKA WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT068801388881 38,713.55 
NORFOLK HIGH SCHOOL101008388882 130.00 
PETTY CASH/MILLARD NORTH071368388885 215.24 
RENAISSANCE HOTEL OPERATING CO138949388886 893.96 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040388887 625.22 
ABLE ENGRAVERS INC138695388888 6,466.42 
AC AWARDS INC131632388889 270.00 
ACCESSIBLITY DOT NET INC132534388890 833.00 
ACT INC010003388892 195.00 
KAREN S ADAMS133402388893 58.89 
AIR POWER OF NEBRASKA INC.131189388894 676.80 
AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL INC108351388895 54.93 
AKSARBEN PIPE AND SEWER CLEAN LLC133620388896 1,914.85 
ALEGENT HEALTH136365388897 4,916.66 
ALL FLAGS ETC107060388899 229.00 
ALLIED CONSTRUCTION SERVICES011180388900 6,526.00 
AMAZON.COM INC107651388901 1,818.93 
AAFCS132722388902 145.00 
AMI GROUP INC102430388903 1,545.00 
AMSAN LLC069689388904 34,970.55 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL065425388905 5,338.95 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
ANDERSON BROTHERS ENGINEERING CO132585388906 236.54 
DANIELLE M ANDERSON138548388907 68.88 
JAMIE L ANDERSON138915388908 157.66 
DAVE ANDERSON136056388909 101.98 
ELIZABETH A ANDREASEN134167388910 18.38 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989388911 19,607.00 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436388912 410.16 
DIANE ARAUJO133770388913 120.02 
ASCD013496388914 1,924.00 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235388915 111.22 
ASHA PRODUCT SALES103023388916 110.00 
ATS MOBILE TELEPHONE CO INC010083388918 3.12 
AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC138291388919 16,693.21 
AUTO CLUB GROUP135559388920 31.00 
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY LP108092388921 1,514.76 
CARLEEN F BABANI109814388922 154.42 
CAROLE J BACKHUUS132453388923 123.12 
KRISTIN BAINBRIDGE138441388925 50.00 
BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS, INC.017900388927 159.80 
BARDCO INC137623388928 272.57 
REX J BARKER017908388929 197.30 
BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646388930 374.52 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877388931 213.90 
LORI A BARTELS107979388932 88.80 
TERA BASS133359388933 80.00 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540388934 79.37 
BENIK CORP.102860388935 82.00 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884388937 11.99 
NOLAN J BEYER134945388938 639.92 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111388940 27,286.78 
BLAND & ASSOCIATES PC136105388941 2,275.00 
DICK BLICK CO099220388942 1,160.43 
MATTHEW J BLOMENKAMP138841388943 42.92 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478388944 37.74 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899388945 238.66 
BOOKWORM101364388946 87.91 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559388948 11,735.27 
BOYS TOWN NATIONAL019835388949 1,812.33 
BYRON P BRAASCH136274388950 3,000.00 
FWD MEDIA INC134129388951 965.00 
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576388953 187.04 
BRETFORD MANUFACTURING INC137843388954 120.33 
NANCY A BROSAMLE136986388955 791.00 
ALLISON M BROWN138640388956 50.62 
NANCY A BROWN133824388957 48.73 
BRYAN ELEMENTARY135036388958 230.50 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550388959 229.00 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431388962 3,546.00 
SCOTT G BUTLER134237388963 59.50 
EILEEN CABRERA137274388964 37.24 
ELIZABETH J CAREY106806388967 28.42 
PIONEER LOCK CO INC054237388968 152.52 
CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY CO023970388969 276.96 
CURTIS R CASE131158388970 565.55 
CAROLINE ANNE CASIAS138916388971 40.00 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970388972 8,031.56 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589388973 1,844.00 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL065420388974 5,512.50 
CENTRAL SALES INC138613388975 764.59 
SUSAN M CHADWICK135648388976 41.07 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271388977 36.63 
KEVIN J CHICK106836388978 167.62 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851388979 9,591.75 
GRANT T CHRISTIANSEN138698388980 51.67 
CLARITUS132581388981 1,357.21 
JILL R CLASSEN138843388983 29.15 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC099222388984 82.27 
DALE CLAUSEN025235388985 140.42 
KATHLEEN CLIFFORD130246388986 16.00 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135388987 179.76 
NANCY S COLE137013388988 158.84 
COLLEGE BOARD/NYO107482388989 1,470.00 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701388990 85.47 
OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CTRS OF NE PC135082388991 208.00 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057388993 13,817.52 
CONTROLTEMP INC132720388994 366.85 
CPI QUALIFIED PLAN CONSULTANTS INC137395388996 1,715.00 
CROSS POINTE INNOVATIONS LLC138169388997 2,873.61 
JOSEPH R CRUM136088388998 162.00 
CRYSTAL SPRINGS BOOKS099957389000 644.26 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300389001 9,053.52 
WILLIAM P CUNNINGHAM133651389002 53.95 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345389003 178.10 
CURTIS 1000 INC100577389004 11,046.04 
CHERYL L CUSTARD130900389005 104.90 
D & D COMMUNICATIONS130731389006 785.70 
JEAN T DAIGLE132671389007 132.37 
DAILY RECORD131003389008 60.20 
MIDWEST HARDWOODS138477389009 161.92 
STACY DARNOLD138306389010 76.76 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246389011 68.27 
CHERYL R DECKER032497389012 72.15 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469389013 13,282.97 
ANDREW S DEFREECE106713389014 546.12 
DEMCO INC032800389016 435.63 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872389017 1,508.97 
EVA DENTON136316389018 16.76 
BASTIAN DERICHS137331389019 40.96 
DIAMOND MARKETING SOLUTIONS133968389021 1,190.89 
VOGEL WEST INC130685389022 1,038.22 
DIESEL POWER EQUIPMENT CO INC137713389023 256.83 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473389024 2,529.44 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669389025 719.12 
DIGITAL RIVER EDUCATION SVCS INC138677389026 726.64 
DINAH MIGHT ADVENTURES LP133610389027 134.70 
DIVISION 15 SALES INC134539389028 798.27 
LINDA K DONOHUE135373389029 63.27 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648389030 20,950.00 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908389034 397,386.38 
SUSAN M DULANY135689389036 543.76 
DXP ENTERPRISES INC073231389038 44.45 
JEANNE J DYMOND137117389039 19.76 
DYNA-KLEEN SERVICES INC100951389040 270.00 
KELLY EALY138426389042 96.63 
EASTERN NEBRASKA HUMAN SVCS AGENCY036520389043 32,560.00 
LACEY M EDDY138878389044 22.92 
EDMOND PUBLIC SCHOOLS138934389045 150.00 
BRADLEY EDMUNDSON134991389046 82.70 
EDUCATION LOGISTICS, INC132240389047 6,312.50 
EDUCATIONAL RESOURCE SERVICES INC138884389048 418.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525389049 202.28 
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SKILLS INC101277389050 2,500.00 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823389051 440.50 
ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING & EQPT CO038100389052 119.35 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140389053 431.35 
ELMAN & CO INC131007389054 1,348.00 
RANDY BARGER138089389055 742.50 
ENGAGING TECHNOLOGIES LLC138257389056 34.95 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066389057 1,247.75 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC138390389058 51.00 
PAMELA A ERIXON135360389060 510.00 
TED H ESSER109066389061 125.88 
TARA R FABIAN134861389063 48.62 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699389064 4,970.00 
FEDEX OFFICE AND PRINT SERVICES INC056724389066 386.13 
FEINER SUPPLY CO136377389067 462.60 
ALICIA C FEIST131826389068 34.30 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470389069 300.94 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC040537389070 4,217.66 
ANGELA L FERGUSON137016389071 154.41 
JOSHUA P FIELDS136320389072 98.62 
FILTER SHOP INC133919389073 2,788.74 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755389075 109,676.47 
SHANNON M FISCHER109855389076 88.02 
FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC041086389078 498.18 
FLOORS INC131555389079 2,038.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100389080 7,322.26 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146389082 39.18 
TRICIA A FREEMAN135400389083 12.77 
KELLY L FREY136317389084 25.09 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543389085 55.72 
ERIC W FULLER134168389086 56.94 
FUN AND FUNCTION LLC137663389087 115.23 
GAYLORD BROTHERS INC043900389088 98.07 
MICHELE L GEHRINGER108300389089 119.83 
NATALIE F GINGERICH138941389091 112.93 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660389093 777.00 
GOODWILL INDUSTRIES INC044886389096 1,440.00 
GOPHER044891389097 844.82 
KAREN A GORDON044896389098 16.59 
DIANE K GOSE136192389099 38.68 
GP DIRECT043609389100 151.51 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950389101 2,912.23 
CORIE GRANT-LEANNA138935389102 50.00 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965389103 39.96 
KRISTIN R GREENWALD138845389105 77.70 
JANET L GRIERSON134133389106 37.63 
ANGELA M DAIGLE134751389107 109.83 
HARRY S GRIMMINGER130083389108 124.88 
CANDRA R GUENTHER135016389109 50.51 
SARAH A HAEFNER138870389110 240.40 
MICHELLE R HALL134436389111 75.48 
JAMES R HANLON136805389113 110.00 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853389115 25,899.70 
HARCOURT OUTLINES INC047856389116 302.76 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820389117 168,865.58 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458389118 33.36 
CHARLES E HAYES III132489389119 63.71 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475389120 6,000.00 
MARGARET HEBENSTREIT PT108273389121 109.34 
DAVID OLSZEWSKI048555389124 36.00 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478389125 17.15 
NICOLAS A HERINK137206389126 40.00 
JENNIFER HERZOG133186389127 80.00 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423389128 2,016.05 
HIGHSMITH LLC138687389129 104.29 
CAMILLE H HINZ048845389130 79.09 
HOBBY LOBBY STORES INC048940389131 12.98 
JOHN HOLEA138925389134 90.00 
RICK W HOOK049330389135 153.18 
STACY M HORSHAM137943389136 107.56 
LINDA D HORTON095520389137 130.26 
HOTSY EQUIPMENT COMPANY049450389138 247.75 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650389140 4,293.74 
DIANE F HOWARD101533389141 25.03 
KARA L HUTTON130283389142 46.68 
HY-VEE INC133397389143 359.60 
HY-VEE INC049851389144 1,686.89 
IB SOURCE135784389145 492.50 
POPCO INC051573389146 69.00 
IKON OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC133882389147 6,120.00 
IN TUNE PARTNERS LLC066555389148 300.00 
SCOTT  H INGWERSON136349389150 1,702.00 
INSIGHT PUBLIC SECTOR INC137862389151 2,961.66 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE ORG.F03011389152 1,068.66 
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER102958389153 6.77 
J A SEXAUER101991389155 536.72 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928389156 3,363.28 
KORRINDA K JAMIESON136314389157 103.28 
CHRISTINE A JANOVEC-POEHLMAN131157389158 113.28 
HANNELORE W JASA054240389159 34.74 
JSDO I LLC136953389160 475.56 
MARGARET J JAWORSKI134836389161 28.79 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735389162 533.75 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059389163 132.48 
JENSEN GARDENS INC138937389164 50,404.00 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037389165 5,489.33 
KATRINA A JOHANSEN138952389168 189.00 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573389169 71.26 
LAURIE E JONES138713389170 10.32 
KYLE A JURGENS135815389171 28.31 
KAGAN PUBLISHING INC056182389172 46.00 
DAVID KAHM137214389173 50.00 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265389175 109.67 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272389176 189.96 
JULIE B KEMP134801389177 36.63 
ANDREA L KIDD131177389178 44.77 
MARK LEVINE056550389179 125.07 
KIDS ON THE MOVE INC133973389180 2,673.50 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770389181 83.81 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KOHLL'S PHARMACY & HOMECARE INC106582389182 157.20 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607389183 2,530.35 
JAMIE KOSELUK138422389184 50.00 
KENT KRAUSE138273389185 81.47 
JANET F KRUGER057683389186 50.36 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923389187 65.00 
JOSEPH R KUEHL137385389189 77.64 
AMANDA J KUNES109033389190 310.08 
VICTORIA L KYROS132934389191 20.98 
LAB SAFETY SUPPLY INC058740389192 264.92 
MCKAYLA LABORDE137694389193 106.00 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775389195 6,552.42 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257389196 337.19 
JANET L LARSON136518389197 616.50 
LARUE DISTRIBUTING INC102491389198 1,131.67 
LASEREQUIPMENT INC136951389199 757.58 
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC135156389200 444.72 
JEFFREY SCHRANK059100389201 218.40 
GREGORY J LECLEIR JR137834389202 50.00 
BONNIE K LEVINGER137345389204 22.20 
LAURIE LEWANDOWSKI138951389205 19.17 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470389206 654.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577389207 103.90 
STACY L LONGACRE059866389208 255.30 
KATHLEEN E LORSBACH132678389209 69.93 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397389210 2,029.66 
ZACHARY B LOWE136319389211 29.42 
LRP PUBLICATIONS INC057770389212 255.50 
KEITH W LUTZ060153389213 140.26 
LYMAN-RICHEY CORPORATION060155389214 617.72 
MACKIN BOOK CO099321389215 2,217.28 
MALIBU GALLERY102601389217 48.84 
KAREN M MARBLE137007389218 65.49 
MARKING REFRIGERATION INC106392389220 224.19 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505389221 111.56 
DAWN M MARTEN133201389222 26.86 
YOLANDA A MARTIN135854389223 92.80 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560389224 1,506.02 
COURTNEY N MATULKA137783389225 8.51 
MAX I WALKER108052389226 829.92 
MJ-1 LLC101129389227 1,276.80 
SUSAN P MCADAM107123389228 74.09 
MCCALL PATTERN COMPANY130467389229 39.90 
KATHERINE MCCARTHY137433389230 27.31 
KELLY MCCULLOUGH137226389232 50.00 
MCGILL RESTORATION INC.133898389233 4,992.00 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
RYE L MCINTOSH137014389234 115.38 
MEDICAL TECHNOLOGIES INC101274389235 3,850.80 
SAMANTHA MEISTER134256389236 50.00 
ANGELA R MERCIER017611389237 36.63 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600389238 242.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403389240 11,047.73 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870389242 1,561.89 
MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC064950389243 180.00 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233389244 881.49 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438389245 780.00 
SANDRA R MILLER132412389246 40.24 
MIRACLE RECREATION EQUIPMENT CO065810389247 1,734.48 
MOBILITY MOTORING LLC138938389248 480.00 
LINDA K MOHLMAN133962389249 42.75 
MONEY HANDLING MACHINES, INC.066010389250 304.00 
KAREN F MONTGOMERY066083389251 49.01 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532389252 12,370.00 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491389253 25.81 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052389254 57.33 
JANIS R MULLINS066490389255 77.15 
DANIEL M MURPHY066510389256 56.96 
DARREN D MYERS131395389258 118.22 
NAPA/GENUINE PARTS COMPANY066996389259 21.98 
NASCO067000389260 154.14 
NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL132854389262 104.00 
NEBRASKA CTR EDUCATION OF CHILDREN102522389263 75.00 
SCANTRON CORP130548389264 511.98 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334389265 3,808.59 
NEBRASKA ASSN OF SCHOOL BOARDS068343389266 793.00 
NEBRASKA ASSOCIATION FOR THE GIFTED068340389267 100.00 
NEBRASKA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION068440389269 680.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445389270 427.99 
NEBRASKA LIBRARY COMMISSION100872389271 1,419.00 
NEBRASKA MUSIC EDUCATORS ASSN068463389272 375.00 
NEBRASKA SCIENTIFIC068684389273 577.70 
LYNNE NEWVILLE069561389275 82.14 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843389276 8,412.87 
NIENHUIS MONTESSORI USA INC069576389277 566.83 
CARISSA N NIETFELDT136715389278 25.36 
NORFOLK LODGE & SUITES LLC138798389279 316.00 
MARILYN M O'CONNELL137533389280 202.87 
KELLY R O'TOOLE133368389281 52.17 
ANNE M OETH050042389284 183.15 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013389288 13,648.61 
OHARCO DISTRIBUTORS070245389289 2,618.70 
OLSSON ASSOCIATES INC136898389290 15,268.24 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OMAHA CASING CO INC134725389291 20.00 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD  (EDUC)071053389292 171.60 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD  (EDUC)071053389293 152.88 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD CO071050389294 362.58 
ONE SOURCE133850389295 844.00 
ORIZON CPAS LLC132146389297 35,483.94 
MARY M OSTERLOH130092389298 82.70 
OVERHEAD DOOR COMPANY OMAHA071190389299 440.70 
OXFORD UNIVERSITY PRESS INC071240389300 105.30 
ELIZABETH A PACHTA134428389301 295.70 
ANNE M PAGE071500389302 10.00 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288389306 23,890.00 
JANIE L PAPP134636389307 11.10 
GEORGE PARKER137015389308 41.07 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006389309 100.46 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098389310 273.58 
CYNTHIA L PAVONE135569389311 53.11 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891389312 4,825.00 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891389313 100.00 
PATRICIA D BUFFUM131610389314 40.00 
PBS MEDIA DISTRIBUTION LLC-WGBH071305389315 59.21 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652389316 183.66 
JANET PELSTER109831389317 62.72 
HEIDI T PENKE107783389318 43.29 
MARY JO PENNY136941389319 7.50 
LINDA M PETERS138751389320 1,000.00 
ERIC S PETERSON138953389321 139.00 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009389322 50.06 
KYLE PETERSON137184389323 139.00 
VICKY L PETERSON134365389324 90.47 
FREDERICK A PETITO131304389325 198.14 
SHEILA M PHELPS072382389326 25.00 
BROOKE M PHILLIPS135934389327 192.03 
PICKATIME138397389328 338.40 
MARY J PILLE130721389329 142.64 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040389330 20,000.00 
POOLEY'S PUMPKIN PATCH INC136376389331 290.00 
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC134598389333 14,670.05 
PRO-ED INC073427389334 688.60 
PRODUCTIVITY INC138487389335 317.36 
PROTEX CENTRAL INC132713389337 3,000.00 
PSYCHOLOGICAL ASSESSMENT073840389338 1,198.80 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420389339 77,675.00 
RAY MARTIN COMPANY132369389340 1,495.02 
BETHANY B RAY109810389341 138.20 
CAITLIN E RAY138920389342 50.00 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642389343 48.93 
RECORDED BOOKS LLC078674389344 26.45 
MELINDA S REED135434389345 236.59 
TERESA M REEDER133828389346 7.50 
DEIDRE REEH135690389347 5.94 
JENNIFER L REID134858389348 89.52 
RENAISSANCE LEARNING INC.099940389349 3,399.15 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192389351 91.63 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847389352 2,536.00 
PAIGE E ROBERTS138312389353 48.51 
DALE H ROBINSON079295389354 110.56 
DAVID PATRICK ROBINSON138942389355 500.00 
KATHY ROCCO135301389356 160.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310389357 827.85 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882389358 24.42 
BRITTANY A ROM134990389359 83.25 
ASHLEY L ROMSHEK138847389360 55.50 
EILEEN A RONCI134081389361 236.44 
ROOFING SOLUTIONS INC134824389362 12,400.00 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286389365 175.38 
DANIEL RUSSELL138944389366 200.00 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477389367 211.08 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685389368 1,095.00 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495389369 73.82 
JEFFREY A SALBERG081604389370 9.99 
PATTERSON MEDICAL SUPPLY INC073300389371 206.13 
JOAN M SANDERS081640389372 205.35 
KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS081725389373 60.27 
HARLAND TECHNOLOGY SERVICES131353389374 11,804.42 
NATHAN SCHAAF138945389375 50.00 
BRENT J SCHADE109806389376 143.51 
SUSAN C SCHALL135317389377 283.02 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880389378 18,340.30 
KELLI J SCHINSTOCK106432389379 63.27 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012389380 7.60 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100389381 194.02 
SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES082140389382 107.25 
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200389383 3,185.51 
SCHOOL MEDIA ASSOCIATES LLC130526389384 14.98 
SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY135488389385 37.10 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350389386 248.51 
SARAH A SCOTT138455389387 129.19 
KIMBERLY A SECORA082905389388 24.53 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910389389 6,254.70 
STAN J SEGAL108161389390 113.28 
KELLY M SELTING082941389391 103.79 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JODY L SEMPEK134189389392 193.36 
SHARED MOBILITY COACH INC133498389393 1,807.50 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800389395 190.37 
LARIA K SHEA137697389396 200.85 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188389397 364.47 
SHRED SAFE LLC138762389398 50.00 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.131887389400 1,427.15 
SIGN SOLUTIONS INC133575389401 315.00 
SIGNAL 88 SECURITY GROUP LLC138176389402 272.00 
SKATELAND 132ND INC132108389403 80.37 
LORI L SMITH138275389405 28.31 
MICHAELA J SMITH134353389407 90.00 
SHELLY A SMITH132003389408 279.00 
SNYDER CHARLESON THERAPY SERVICES132808389409 8,800.00 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093389410 16.07 
SOFTCHOICE CORPORATIONF03032389411 1,111.50 
JOHN D SOUTHWORTH131714389412 26.64 
AMY ST AMOUR109836389414 147.08 
STAFF DEVELOPMENT FOR EDUCATORS101378389415 897.00 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481389416 724.80 
SARAH E STAROSKA134066389417 100.00 
STATE OF NEBRASKA132132389419 200.00 
STATE STEEL OF OMAHA134116389420 933.48 
JULIE A STEDNITZ136440389421 27.97 
SUSAN STODDARD138276389423 35.52 
STONCO INC133486389424 390.00 
MEGAN K STUMP137867389425 166.33 
ERIN SULLIVAN138848389426 56.78 
SUPER SAVER #20102869389428 29.42 
SWANDA BUSINESS FORMS130911389429 906.05 
CARRIE A SWANEY137011389430 120.99 
JAMES D SWITZER132417389431 36.08 
JOHN P SWOBODA134987389432 253.65 
SYSCO LINCOLN INC099302389433 973.27 
TANK GOODNESS OMAHA LLC138911389435 50.00 
TARGET088654389436 571.83 
TASKS GALORE PUBLISHING INC135783389437 613.14 
TEACHER CREATED RESOURCES134606389438 55.94 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969389440 4,316.93 
TETRAD DEVELOPMENT CORP138946389441 45,365.29 
JACQUES L TETRAULT132419389442 284.82 
THACKER ELECTRIC089130389443 25.80 
TERENCE J THIELEN135066389444 30.53 
THINK SOCIAL PUBLISHING INC137397389445 323.80 
ANNETTE J THOMAS136381389446 12.77 
NANCY C THORNBLAD107959389448 480.41 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
GREGORY E TIEMANN132493389450 16.65 
TILT GOLF132140389451 216.00 
PEGGI S TOMLINSON136578389452 39.90 
JEAN M TOOHER106807389453 31.30 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446389454 2,577.88 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446389455 14,196.00 
TOTAL MARKETING INC089574389456 215.78 
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES132138389457 499.88 
TRADE WELL PALLET INC108055389458 6,000.00 
BRYAN TRAN137829389459 25.55 
TRANSWORLD SYSTEMS INC138478389460 419.58 
MARIELA J TRIBULATO135247389461 120.00 
TRIPLE A LEARNING LTDF03043389462 280.00 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719389463 34.97 
TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.106493389464 12,018.15 
LYNNE A TRUMAN132268389465 37.19 
TSI INCORPORTED138910389466 632.58 
KATHRYN A TUCKER135628389467 160.60 
AUTO PROS OF MILLARD INC138047389468 3,322.40 
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505389469 547.66 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819389470 152.07 
UNISOURCE WORLDWIDE INC090678389471 21,663.60 
UNITED ART AND EDUCATION099268389472 159.29 
UNITED EQUIPMENT SERVICES CO INC109861389473 12,739.63 
UNIVERSITY PUB, INC.090900389474 586.00 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923389475 200.00 
HIGHSMITH LLC138736389476 27.20 
SPORT SUPPLY GROUP INC090440389477 447.71 
USA-CLEAN INC138661389478 2,326.73 
UTILITY TRENCHING INC137707389479 19,761.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117389480 154.00 
VAL LTD091040389481 195.00 
AUTO LUBE INC138046389482 710.13 
VAN WALL TURF & IRRIGATION134790389483 117.95 
JENNIFER L VEST136318389485 94.35 
DAWN R WAGNER138311389487 26.92 
BARBARA N WALLER093008389488 149.36 
LINDA WALTERS131112389489 53.72 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650389490 117.79 
WATER ENGINEERING, INC.093765389491 2,270.38 
HEIDI J WEAVER133438389492 33.47 
JILL E WEDDINGTON132263389493 26.70 
BECKY S WEGNER093978389494 67.65 
CHERA A WENZL131142389496 9.10 
WESTSIDE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS094650389497 1,250.00 
CRAIG T WHALEY134658389498 216.45 

21



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KIM WHEATLEY130510389499 78.48 
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751389500 148.57 
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC137878389501 887.83 
ROBIN L WIAR134072389502 115.00 
SARA M WIESE-JOHNSON137892389503 14.32 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162389504 65.49 
TAMARA J WILLIAMS136322389505 259.42 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323389506 58.66 
CRAIG J WOLF109073389508 54.39 
WORLD BOOK INC095376389509 398.00 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491389510 269.06 
WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS INC100578389511 20.01 
TAMRA J WULFF138886389512 30.00 
WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO109852389513 998.28 
XEROX CORPORATION (LEASES)095674389514 6,879.64 
JEFFREY YOST138356389515 27.31 
YOUTHLIGHT INC.101717389516 109.61 
PAUL  R ZOHLEN136855389517 59.39 
LACHELLE ZUHLKE135647389518 37.63 

1,725,948.42 Total for GENERAL FUND
CULLIGAN OF OMAHA10689323338 100.84 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984323339 215.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001323340 1,093.95 
SODEXO INC & AFFILIATES10147623341 584,217.66 

585,627.45 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

CONSTRUCT INC135287388992 17,388.13 
DELL MARKETING LP102577389015 49,995.00 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740389041 8,507.00 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140389053 80.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423389128 7,818.34 
INDOFF, INC.135502389149 1,425.61 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880389378 3,050.00 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910389389 159.40 

88,423.48 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

TERENCE G CABRAL138539388854 225.00 
AMY E OETTER138928388864 87.50 
STEPHEN W. VENTEICHER107354388871 87.50 
DANIEL P WOOTTON138505388873 200.00 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792388884 120.00 
ALEKS CORPORATION136499388898 156.25 
AMAZON.COM INC107651388901 1,009.72 
CYNTHIA F BAILEY136729388924 26.71 
SUE ANN BAINTER138929388926 251.50 
WILLIAMS PROPERTIES LLC136633388947 2,007.00 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559388948 74.14 

22



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
INTERNATIONAL CATERING INC107281388952 86.16 
JAMES R MINOR137791388965 400.00 
DENISE CANIGLIA138032388966 23.88 
KELLI CRUMP137656388999 32.10 
DEMCO INC032800389016 418.12 
MICHAEL L DEUTSCH138933389020 642.90 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525389049 240.00 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610389062 302.99 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755389075 701.02 
FONTENELLE NATURE ASSOCIATION107364389081 88.00 
GREENLIFE GARDENS133885389104 500.00 
HANDWRITING WITHOUT TEARS131067389112 887.92 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517389123 127.60 
MARY K HOUGH106169389139 510.00 
LESLIE S IRWIN136987389154 510.00 
JENNIFER M JEROME132340389166 128.97 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217389194 281.29 
SUSAN L LEMONS135486389203 908.70 
ELIZABETH MUTCHESON138939389257 908.20 
MATT RESOURCES INC100813389350 1,100.00 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023389363 360.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350389386 791.05 
KENT E SPEER082438389413 510.00 
SUNTEX INTERNATIONAL INC134845389427 287.50 
TEACHING STRATEGIES INC132974389439 2,184.43 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923389475 1,280.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117389480 324.75 
VAL LTD091040389481 71.14 
CAROL B VANDE KERKHOFF136919389484 510.00 
NICOLE R WOJTOWICZ138947389507 908.70 

20,270.74 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587388995 123,068.80 

123,068.80 Total for 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423389128 97.09 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607389183 621.15 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775389195 330.00 
VIRCO INC092323389486 1,004.40 

2,052.64 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

ALDRICH ELEMENTARY135034388851 978.16 
KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL134284388858 11,374.35 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL065438388860 26,696.65 
MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL065440388861 24,834.91 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL065443388862 21,968.29 
OMAHA PERFORMING ARTS SOCIETY135792388883 388.00 
TEK INDUSTRIES INC010298388891 521.50 

23



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989388911 638.00 
GARRETT ASHBY138007388917 42.00 
BARCO MUNICIPAL PRODUCTS, INC.017900388927 142.80 
BARNES AND NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646388930 39.13 
CASSIDY BENJAMIN138888388936 30.00 
DENA BIELSKI137705388939 127.50 
DICK BLICK CO099220388942 114.96 
BOOKWORM101364388946 636.95 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559388948 2,889.63 
BREANNA L BURKLUND138730388960 187.50 
JAMES PHILLIP BURROUGHS III138366388961 40.00 
HEATHER CLARK138932388982 270.00 
DOSTALS CONSTRUCTION CO INC130648389030 18,375.00 
AMANDA D DOWNING135695389035 261.00 
HAYLEY DUNCAN137509389037 175.00 
ZACH ERIKSEN138591389059 25.00 
KAITLYN FEDER135766389065 160.00 
ALISON FISHER138157389077 185.00 
TAYLOR GILROY138064389090 30.00 
NEIL GIRMUS137831389092 35.00 
JIM GLOVER137760389094 112.50 
ROBERT S GLOVER137704389095 135.00 
GREENLIFE GARDENS133885389104 975.00 
KASSIE HEEB137044389122 150.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423389128 1,119.85 
RACHEL HOGAN135313389132 37.50 
RYAN HOGAN136879389133 107.50 
YUAN YUAN JIANG138369389167 25.00 
KATHERINE ANN KASTRUP138731389174 37.50 
ERIN KUEHL138158389188 67.50 
JACOB B MALASHOCK138890389216 112.50 
SHEA MARCINSKI138768389219 25.00 
EMILY MCCOY138066389231 30.00 
ABBY MEYER138948389241 22.50 
NATIONAL ASSN ELEM SCHOOL PRINCIPAL099662389261 128.95 
CAROLYN A WEISBECKER138940389268 144.00 
ALAN R NEESEN138081389274 85.00 
ERIN OELTJEN137588389282 42.00 
HANNAH MARIE OELTJEN138769389283 35.00 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138389296 209.93 
POOLEY'S PUMPKIN PATCH INC136376389331 295.00 
POSITIVE PROMOTIONS INC079051389332 152.45 
MATTHEW C PROPHIT138738389336 30.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310389357 210.00 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023389363 1,101.75 
CHELSEA ROTHANZL138943389364 72.00 

24



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  December 5, 2011

Date: 11/30/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MOOJAN SHARITI-ARANI138950389394 112.50 
DAVID SHRIVER137119389399 120.00 
HANNA MARIE SLOSSON138135389404 187.50 
DUSTIN ROSS SMITH138430389406 32.50 
ELISABETH A STARR138734389418 42.00 
BROOKE STILMOCK138198389422 30.00 
MORGAN SZYMCZAK138763389434 187.50 
MORIAH THOMPSON137122389447 150.00 
KACY THURMAN138067389449 30.00 
VALA'S PUMPKIN PATCH132117389480 434.00 
AMANDA WEIHL135522389495 30.00 

117,985.76 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
SUE Z. BEERS130625388869 -120.00 

-120.00 Total for 

2,663,257.29 Report Total               

25



11/29/2011 12/5/2011 12/5/2011

Lot Quantity

1 20

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

Millard Public Schools - Planned Disposition of Surplus Property 

BOE Packet Due Date: BOE Meeting Date: Sale or Disposals Scheduled After:

Description

Laptop computers

26



27



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Policy 5200  

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011 

 

Department Pupil Services 

 

Title and Brief  

Description: Attendance, tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism 

              
 

Action Desired: Approval  

 

 

Background: Language Revision 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: Correlation with 5200.1 

 

Timeline:  Immediate 

 

Responsible 

Persons: Bill Jelkin, Director of Pupil Services, 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources  

 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

28

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

Pupil Services  

Attendance            5200  
 

 

Regular and timely attendance furthers the benefits of instructional programs, aids in the development of self-

discipline and responsibility, and minimizes disruption of the educational process. Children who are of the 

mandatory attendance age, or who are younger than mandatory attendance age and are enrolled in any public school, 

are required to attend school each day the school is open and in session, except when excused by school authorities, 

the child has graduated from high school, or attendance is otherwise excused by law.  By District Rule, the principal 

or principal’s designee shall determine when a student is excessively absent.  District students may be excused from 

school provided they meet the requirements of applicable law, and District Rule., and the guidelines adopted by the 

school principal or principal's designee.  

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-201  

 

Related Policies & Rules: 5200.1, 5200.2  

 

Policy Approved:             Millard Public Schools  

Revised: July 20, 1987; September 19, 1994; September 8, 1998;       Omaha, Nebraska  

September 11, 2000; June 20, 2005; Reaffirmed: February 16, 2009; December 5, 2011 

29



 

 

AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Audit Report for FYE11 

 

MEETING DATE: December 5, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF  

DESCRIPTION: Audit Report for FYE11 – To receive and file the FYE11 audit report as submitted by the 

district’s independent auditing firm Orizon CPAs LLC. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval     x        Discussion             Information Only                                                     .       

 

BACKGROUND: Public schools are required to employ independent auditors to review their financial records 

each year.  The auditing firm employed for our district for the FYE11 fiscal year audit was 

Orizon CPAs LLC. 

 

A copy of the audit is attached.  (Paper copies will also be given to board members at the 

meeting.)  A representative from Orizon (i.e., probably Jodi Renni) will be present at the 

meeting to address the board and answer questions. 

 

Also attached is the Letter to Management (now referred to as the Letter to Those Charged 

with Governance).   

 

Copies of the Audit Report and Governance Letter are filed with the State of Nebraska. 

 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the board receive and file the FYE11 Audit Report as submitted by 

Orizon CPAs LLC. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: n/a 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen (Assoc. Supt. Gen. Admin.) and Chris Hughes (Accounting Manager) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

30

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Revised Staff Development Policies and Rules 

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011  

 

Department Human Resources  

 

Title and Brief  

Description:        4300 – Revision 

 

Action Desired: First Reading 

 

Background: We are reviewing our current staff development policies and rules to more clearly 

define the role of staff development. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: N/A 

 

Timeline:  Immediately  

 

Responsible 

Persons: Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Director of Staff Development & Instructional Improvement 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources  

 Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

82

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Human Resources 

 

Professional Growth/InserviceStaff Development  4300 

 

Each certificated staff member is expected to be continuously involved in a program of professional growth to 

maintain and improve performance and proficiency. 

The Superintendent or designee shall create and maintain a comprehensive District staff 

development program for all employees. 
 

The District will provide appropriate a comprehensive staff development program inservice activities and 

professional growth programs to assist staff members in their professional development. 

 

The comprehensive staff development program Professional growth and inservice programs will be continuously 

evaluated in order to determine the greatest possible educational benefits are being achieved. 

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat.utes §79-830 

   Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-007.07 

 

Related Policies & Rules: 4300.1, 4300.2, 6400  

 

 

Policy Adopted:  October 7, 1974 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  December 1, 1997; June 2, 2003; June 2, 2008; December 19, 2011 Omaha, NE 

 

 

83



Rule 4300r1 11/29/11 Page 1 of 1 

  

Human Resources 

 

Professional Growth /Inservice Staff Development 4300.1 
 

Rules and Regulations for Purposes of Continued Employment 

 

Professional Growth Period for Permanent Certificated Employees 

 

Nebraska Sstate Llaw allows the District to amend or terminate the contract of a permanent certificated employee for 

failing to give evidence of professional growth as required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830.  Every six years permanent 

certificated employees shall give evidence of professional growth.  Six semester hours of college credit shall be accepted 

as evidence of professional growth, or in the alternative, such other professional growth activities as are approved by the 

Board. Each permanent certificated employee’s six-year period will commence on September 1 of the year coinciding 

with permanent certification status and on September 1 every six years thereafter.  

 

Professional Growth Activities for Permanent Certificated Employees 

 

Professional growth activities in connection with Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830 shall consist of the professional work approved 

by the Board.  The conditions and limitations pertaining to the performance and acceptance of such activities are subject 

to review and change by resolution of the Board of Education.  Credit for engaging in a newly approved activity shall be 

allowed only for work done after the date of approval of the activity unless the Board provides otherwise.  Where allowed 

by law, credit granted for any type of activity may be limited for each individual during the individual's professional 

growth period.  This is done in order to encourage a variety of professional growth activities for each individual. 

 

Approval of Professional Growth Credit 

 

Except for professional growth courses and activities used to meet the requirements of Nebraska Sstate Llaw, each staff 

development activity sponsored by the District or to be undertaken by an employee for purposes of salary advancement 

must be approved by the Superintendent or the Superintendent’s designee.   

 

Appeal 

 

Staff members may appeal decisions under this rRule to the Associate Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources. 

 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830 

Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-007.07 

 

Related Policies & Rules: 4300, 4300.2, 6400  

 

Rule Approved:  10/7/1974 October 7, 1974 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  2/20/1984; 7/2/1990; 9/7/1993; 11/18/1996; 11/17/97; 6/5/2000; 

February 20, 1984; July 2, 1990; September 7, 1993; November 18, 1996; June 5, 2000; Omaha, NE 

June 2, 2008; December 19, 2011 

 

84



Human Resources  

Staff Development  

 4300.2 

The purpose of staff development is to improve student achievement through differentiated learning and 

instructional opportunties, staff engagement, staff performance, and to improve the operations of the District.  

Comprehensive staff development includes both training and professional development.   

 

Definitions:  

Training is a learning experience to acquire specific skills (job target) or to meet legal requirements.    

 

Professional development is a continual and comprehensive learning experience to help staff improve their 

effectiveness as professionals. 

 

 

Delivery Models:  
Training  

Delivery models will include but not be limited to face to face workshops or an on-line learning management 

system.  Comprehensive staff development will ensure staff members are offered training opportunities to improve 

job performance and workplace engagement. 

 

Professional Development 

Job-embedded professional development is included but not limited to professional learning communities for 

teachers in the District.  Professional development will be also be offered for all staff in a variety of delivery 

methods including but not limited to internally and externally offered face to face and on-line courses, workshops, 

institutes, networks, coaching and conferences through individual, small group or large group settings. 

 

 

Content: 

Comprehensive staff development will support the District strategic plan and building site plans in a systemic 

manner. 

 

Comprehensive staff development will support the Millard Instructional Model to support the growth of all 

educators to  

a. Effectively plan differentiated instruction; 

b. Promote a positive, productive learning environment to reach each student; 

c. Teach the written curriculum through a variety of appropriate instructional strategies; 

d. Conduct valid assessments, analyze results, and adjust instruction as needed; and 

e. Initiate meaningful professional growth and contribute to school and District improvement. 

 

Comprehensive staff development will support the professional development and growth of all supervisors, 

administrators and teacher leaders through continual leadership development. 

 

Comprehensive staff development will respond to the requirements in law and other local, state and federal 

mandates.   

 

 

Planning: 

Comprehensive staff development will use student and staff data and a collaborative method in planning, creating, 

and providing short term and long term professional development and training.  Input and support will be gathered 

from representatives of all stakeholders. 

 

 

 

 

85



 

Accountability: 

It is the responsibility of the District to provide staff development opportunities in the form of training and 

professional development that assist employees in carrying out the responsibilities of their jobs.  It is the 

responsibility of all employees to be continuously engaged in their professional growth and apply their learnings to 

improve their job performance.  It is the responsibility of each supervisor to ensure and promote staff development 

so that all staff members engage in continuous improvement. 

 

Evaluation:   

The comprehensive staff development program will be continuously evaluated in order to determine the greatest 

possible educational benefits are being achieved. 

 

 

Related Policies & Rules : 4300, 4300.1, 6400 

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830 

   Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-007.07 

 

 
Rule Approved:  December 19, 2011  Millard Public Schools  
  Omaha, NE 

  
 

86



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Revised Staff Development Policies and Rules  

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011  

 

Department Educational Services  

 

Title and Brief  

Description:        6400 - Revision 

      
 

Action Desired: First Reading 

 

 

Background: We are reviewing our current staff development policies and rules to more clearly 

define the role of staff development.  6400, 6400.1 and 6400.2 have been revised 

and moved to the 4000 series.  A new 6400 has been revised and is being retained 

in the 6000 series in light of recommendations from the 2007 Curriculum 

Management Audit. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: N/A 

 

Timeline:  Immediately  

 

Responsible 

Persons: Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Director of Staff Development & Instructional Improvement 

 Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

87

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Educational Services 
Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

 

Staff Development 6400 
 

The purpose of staff development is to improve student achievement through differentiated learning and 

instructional opportunities and to improve the effective operation of the District.  Educational Services and Human 

Resources will work collaboratively with District level and building leaders to provide staff development that 

supports best instructional practices focused on the written, taught, and assessed curriculum, the District-identified 

Practices that Promote Successful Student Learning, and the continuous improvement of knowledge and skills as 

they apply to the Millard Education Program (MEP). 

 

 

The purpose of staff development is to improve student achievement and to improve the operation of the Millard 

Public Schools. The Superintendent or his or her designee shall determine the design, development and 

implementation of all staff development programs offered within the District.  

 

Comprehensive staff development will: 

 

a. respond to initiatives of district strategic plan and  building site plans in a systemic manner; 

b. ensure that all educators effectively plan instruction and promote a positive, productive learning environment; 

c. ensure that all educators are prepared to teach the written curriculum through a variety of appropriate 

instructional strategies; 

d. ensure that all educators are prepared to conduct valid assessments; 

e. ensure that all educators are provided the knowledge and skills necessary to demonstrate their professional 

responsibilities. 

 

The Millard Public Schools will plan, deliver, implement, and evaluate a comprehensive staff development program. 

The design of various program plans will follow considerations outlined in the Comprehensive Staff Development 

Framework. 

 

Legal Reference: Neb. Rev. Stat. §79-830 

   Title 92, Nebraska Administrative Code, Chapter 10-007.07 

 

Related Policies & Rules: 4300, 4300.1, 4300.2  

 

Policy adopted:  July 12, 1999 Millard Public Schools 

Reaffirmed: December 6, 2004 Omaha, Nebraska 

Revised:  December 19, 2011 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

88



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Rule 5200.1  

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011 

 

Department Pupil Services 

 

Title and Brief  

Description: Attendance, tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism 

              
 

Action Desired: Approval  

 

 

Background: We need to revise the policy to incorporate the Greater Omaha Learning Services 

(GOALS) and new allowances provided by the County Attorney. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: Adoption will provide the District greater flexibility with regards to absence 

reporting. 

 

Timeline:  Immediately  

 

Responsible 

Persons: Bill Jelkin, Director of Pupil Services, 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources  

 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

89

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

Pupil Services  

 

Attendance, Tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism      5200.1  
 

I.  Attendance. 

  

A. Attendance Accounting. Attendance accounting shall be accomplished in secondary schools by 

recording students’ attendance period-by-period, in elementary schools by recording students’ 

attendance in the morning and afternoon, and in summer school by recording secondary students’ 

attendance period-by-period and elementary students’ attendance by the hour.  

 

B. Grounds for Excused Absences. Students may will be granted an excused absence from school by the 

principal or the principal’s designee for the following reasons:  

 

1. Personal illness (a physician’s verification is required after four (4) consecutive days of absence for 

illness).  

 

2. Doctor or dental appointments for the student, which cannot be scheduled at a time other than during 

school hours.  

 

3. Death or serious illness of the student’s family member.  

 

4. Attending a funeral.  

 

5. Wedding or graduation of the student’s family member.  

 

6. Legal matters which cannot be arranged at a time other than during school hours.  

 

7. Observance of religious holidays of the student's own faith.  

 

8. College planning visits.  

 

9. Matters involving student safety.  

 

C. Insufficient Grounds for Excused Absences.  Students will be assigned an unexcused absence from 

 school by the principal or the principal’s designee for the following reasons: 

 

1. Family vacations or business trips.  

 

2. Personal recreational activities.  

 

3. Non-school sponsored activities and athletics (e.g., elite competitive cheer, club sports, or theater  

caravans).  

 

4. Babysitting.  

 

5. Birthdays.  

 

6. Work.  

 

 

 

 

90



D.  Rules Governing Absences.  

 

1. Individuals who are authorized to submit written excuses for absences are a parent or guardian, the 

student if age nineteen (19), or the student if emancipated. Written excuses must be provided to the 

principal or the principal's designee.  

 

If an absence is planned, a written request should be made by an individual enumerated in Section 

D (1) above in advance of the absence. The written request must include the date(s) and/or time of 

the planned absence, the reason for the absence and the signature of the person submitting the 

request.  

 

Only the principal or principal's designee is authorized to approve excused absences.  

 

Unless the District has provided prior approval of an absence, if a student is absent, the student's 

parent or guardian must notify the school by calling the principal's office.  

 

2. The student's parents or guardians must call within the time specified by the school's guidelines and 

provide the following information: the date(s) and/or time of the absence and the reason for the 

absence. Failure to call within the required time frame will result in the absence being recorded as 

unexcused.  

 

When a student returns to school after an absence, which has not received District approval, the 

student must report to the school office.  

 

3. The District reserves the right to require verification from a doctor or dentist when an absence is for 

medical or dental reasons.  

 

4. A written excuse, which is forged or contains factual misrepresentations, will subject the student to 

discipline under District Rule and the absence(s) will be recorded as unexcused absences.  

 

E. Make-up Work for Excused and Unexcused Absences.  

 

1. Schoolwork missed due to an excused or unexcused absence, must be completed to the satisfaction 

of each teacher whose class was missed.  

 

2. Students will have a minimum of one (1) school day for each day of absence, to make up missed 

schoolwork. Students who do not make up their work within the prescribed time limits will not 

receive credit for the work missed.  

 

3. Make up work will be provided when a student returns from an absence.  

 

4. Providing early or late semester exams is at the discretion of the building principal or the 

principal’s designee.  

 

II.  Tardiness.  

 

A.  Rules.  The following rules shall apply to tardiness.  

 

1. Students tardy to school will not be admitted to class unless the student has the permission of the 

principal or principal's designee.  

 

2. Tardies will be excused or unexcused as determined by building principal or the principal’s 

designee.  

 

91



3. Each school shall adopt a set of guidelines to be used to avoid or minimize student tardiness and 

publish it in their student handbook.  

 

III.  Excessive Absenteeism.  

 

A. Rules. The following rules shall apply to excessive absenteeism.  

 

1. At least one attendance officer shall be appointed by the District’s Board who shall enforce the 

provisions of Nebraska's mandatory attendance laws. If the Superintendent, a principal, a teacher, 

or a Board member knows of a violation of Nebraska's mandatory attendance laws by a child of 

school age, the child's parents, the person in actual or legal control of such child or any other 

person, then the Superintendent, principal, teacher, or Board member shall report the violation to 

the District’s attendance officer within three (3) days of learning of the violation.  

 

2. If a student has accumulated five (5) absences in a school year or the hourly equivalent, the 

District shall render all services in its power to compel the student to attend a public, private, 

denominational, or parochial school, which the person having control of the student shall 

designate, in an attempt to address the problem of excessive absenteeism. Such services shall 

include, but need not be limited to, the following:  

 

a. One or more meetings between a school attendance officer, school social worker, or the 

school principal or a member of the school administrative staff designated by the school 

administration if a school social worker is unavailable, the student’s parents or guardians, and 

the student, if necessary, to report and to attempt to solve the problem of excessive 

absenteeism, unless the officer or worker has documented the refusal of the parents or 

guardians to participate in such meetings;  

 

b. Educational counseling to determine whether curriculum changes including, but not limited 

to, enrolling the student in an alternative education program that meets the specific 

educational and behavioral needs of the student, would help solve the problem of excessive 

absenteeism;  

 

c. Educational evaluation which may include a psychological evaluation to assist in determining 

the specific condition, if any, contributing to the problem of excessive absenteeism, 

supplemented by specific efforts by the school to help remedy any condition diagnosed; and  

 

d. Investigation of the problem of excessive absenteeism by the school social worker, or if a 

school social worker is unavailable, by the school principal or a member of the school 

administration staff designated by the school administration, to identify conditions which may 

be contributing to the problem. If services for the student and the student’s family are 

determined to be needed, the school social worker or the school principal or a member of the 

school administration staff performing the investigation shall meet with the parents or 

guardians and the student to discuss any referral to appropriate community agencies for 

economic services, family or individual counseling, or other services required to remedy the 

conditions that are contributing to the problem of excessive absenteeism.  

 

e. Prevention and early intervention procedures, service coordination, cooperative efforts, and 

information sharing, in accordance with the Superintendent’s Plan pursuant to Neb. Rev. Stat. 

§ 79-2121.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

92



B.    Notification. 

 

1. If a student has accumulated five (5) eight (8) absences in a school year or the hourly equivalent, 

the District shall will send written notice to the student’s parents or guardians regarding the State 

mandatory attendance and excessive absenteeism laws.  If any of the absences are due to 

documented illness that makes attendance impossible or impracticable, then the notice to the 

student’s parents or guardian shall indicate the number of absences due to such.  

 

2. If a student has accumulated ten (10) absences in a school year or the hourly equivalent, the 

District will continue to assist the student’s parents or guardians in removing any obstacles 

preventing regular school attendance.  The District may request assistance from the county 

attorney of the county in which such student resides.  The County Attorney’s Office may elect to 

send written notification to the student’s parents or guardians regarding the absences.   shall send a 

second written notice to the student’s parents or guardian regarding the State mandatory 

attendance and excessive absenteeism laws. In addition, The District shall send notification to the 

county attorney of the county in which such student resides.  If any of the absences are due to 

documented illness that makes attendance impossible or impracticable, then the notice to the 

student’s parents or guardian shall indicate the number of absences due to such.    

 

3. If a student has accumulated fifteen (15) absences in a school year or the hourly equivalent, the 

District will send written notice to the student’s parents or guardians regarding the State 

mandatory attendance and excessive absenteeism laws.  If any of the absences are due to 

documented illness that makes attendance impossible or impracticable, the notice to the student’s 

parents or guardians shall indicate the number of absences due to such. 

 

4. If a student is absent more than twenty (20) days in a school year or the hourly equivalent, the 

attendance officer shall will file a report with the county attorney of the county in which such 

student resides. Notification to the county attorney shall be in writing, and shall include the 

student's and parents’ names, address, number of excused and unexcused absences, number of 

absences due to documented illness that makes attendance impossible or impracticable, and copies 

of all other relevant information regarding the student’s attendance and excessive absenteeism. 

 

5. If a student has a history of being chronically absent from school, the District shall render any and 

all services in the District’s power to compel the student to attend school.  

 

C. Students on Probation.  If a student on probation who has previously been expelled from the District is 

attending school pursuant to Nebraska law governing students on probation, prior to the re-admission 

of the student to the school, school officials shall meet with the student's probation officer and assist in 

developing conditions of probation that will provide specific guidelines for behavior and consequences 

for misbehavior at school as well as educational objectives that must be achieved. The school may 

expel such a student for subsequent actions which violate District Rule 5400.6. Such a student shall be 

screened by the District for possible disabilities and, if the screening so indicates, the student shall be 

referred for evaluation for possible placement in a District special education program.  

 

IV.  Students Exempt from the Mandatory Attendance Laws. Students who are exempt from the mandatory 

attendance laws are:  

 

A. Students who have obtained a high school diploma;  

B. Students who have completed the program of instruction offered by a school which elects pursuant to 

state law not to meet accreditation or approval requirements;  

C. Students who have reached eighteen (18) years of age;  

93



D. Students who have reached sixteen (16) years of age, but are not yet eighteen (18) years of age and 

their parent or guardian has signed a notarized release discontinuing the enrollment of the student;  

E. Students who will reach six (6) years of age prior to January 1 of the then current school year, and their 

parent or guardian has discontinued enrollment in accordance with District Rule 5100.2(III)(A); and  

 

F. Students who will not reach six (6) years of age prior to January 1 of the then current school year, and 

their parent or guardian has discontinued enrollment in accordance with District Rule 5100.2(III)(B).  

 

V.  Student Discipline.  Students who violate the provisions of this Rule, or the District’s Standards of Student 

Conduct, or the guidelines of the building principal or principal's designee, may be subject to student 

discipline. Students who have excessive absences or tardies may also be subject to student discipline.  

 

VI.  Definitions.  

 

A. "Emancipated student" shall mean any student, under the age of nineteen (19), who is either married, 

or is enlisted in the military service, or unmarried and has voluntarily left home without financial 

support from the student's parent(s) , or the student has been declared emancipated by a court of law 

and the conditions leading to that declaration remain unchanged.  

 

B. "Immediate family" shall mean spouse, parents, children, mother-in-law, father-in-law, siblings, 

siblings-in-law, sons-in-law, daughters-in-law, grandparents, spouses’ grandparents, or any relative 

who is a permanent resident in the student's home or for whom the student has specific responsibility.  

 

C. “Excessive absences” shall mean five (5) or more absences from school in a school year or the hourly 

equivalent.  

 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 29-2270 through 29-2272 2273 

Neb. Rev. Stat. §§ 79-201 through 79-210, and 79-2121  

 

Related Policies & Rules: 5200, 5200.2, 5400.6  

 

Rule Approved:  

Revised: July 20, 1987; September 19, 1994; September 8, 1998;  

September 11, 2000; June 20, 2005; February 16, 2009; April 18, 2011;  

August 15, 2011; December 6, 2011 

 

Millard Public Schools  

          Omaha, Nebraska 

94



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Revised Staff Development Policies and Rules  

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011  

 

Department Educational Services  

 

Title and Brief  

Description:        6400.1 - Deletion 

      
 

Action Desired: Approval  

 

 

Background: We are reviewing our current staff development policies and rules to more clearly 

define the role of staff development. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: N/A 

 

Timeline:  Immediately  

 

Responsible 

Persons: Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Director of Staff Development & Instructional Improvement 

 Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

95

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment  

Staff Development – Framework 6400.1 

 

COMPONENTS  

I. PLANNING  

PLANNING CRITERIA – Issues which must be considered before and during staff development 

planning. 

A. assesses needs at the building level 

B. aligns with District Strategic Plan  

C. addresses PDK Audit  

D. extends and refines state standards  

E. supports District ELOs  

 

INFORMATION GATHERING – Sources from whom needs assessment data should be gathered.  

A. building principals 

B. district trainers (e.g., Staff Development CADRE, MEP Facilitators) 

C. building representatives network (e.g., Staff Development Network, Department Heads, Initiators, 

Team Leaders) 

D. specials (e.g., Industrial Tech, Music, ELL) 

E. education services executive cabinet 

F. other (e.g. staff development homepage input, building plans, surveys, phone interviews, annual 

Staff Development Committee, community input, MEA considerations/requests) 

 

DEMOGRAPHIC REPRESENTATION OF SCHOOL POPULATION – Information /data that is 

needed in order to manage resources considering EQUITY & EQUALITY. 

A. percentage of regular education (e.g., MIT, ILPs, 504 Accommodation Plans) 

B. percentage of special education (e.g., IEPs) 

C. percentage of high ability learner education 

D. percentage of minority (e.g., ELL) 

E. percentage of at- risk (e.g., candidates for scholastic jeopardy.) 

F. percentage of free and reduced lunch 

 

CONTENT/SKILL REPRESENTATION – The content and skill areas that are currently being 

examined through the district process of curriculum design, development, and implementation. 

 

 

96



SPECIALIST REPRESENTATION – The unique professional sub-populations that are also considered.  

A. psychologists 

B. counselors 

C. media specialists 

D. administrators 

 

TIME – When staff development will be conducted.  

A. pre-opening 

B. designated days 

C. blending with curriculum design and development 

D. after school 

E. early release 

F. Saturday mornings 

G. increased contractual time  

 

FISCAL RESOURCES – How staff development will be funded.  

A. staff development budgets 

B. building and District budgets 

C. core services via ESU #3 

D. strategic plan 

 

RESOURCES – What additional resources may be available to complement building and district staff 

development. 

A. CCM Plans 

B. re-teaching plans 

C. high-ability learner plans 

 

II. DELIVERY 

The training steps involved in most staff development offerings: 

A. knowledge building through presentations 

B. skill building through demonstration, practice, feedback 

C. implementation through coaching, periodic follow up, and support 

D. evaluation (summative) through deliberate analysis of ongoing assessment (formative) 

 

 

97



MODES OF DELIVERY- The probable models for delivery of staff development:  

A. study team/action research approach 

B. training 

C. consultation 

D. facilitation 

E. mentoring/coaching 

 

FORMATS OF DELIVERY   

A. training modules/sessions (e.g., 2-4 hours/session) 

B. workshops/inservice (e.g., 6 hours/session or more) 

C. institutes/seminars/academies (e.g., 1-4 day, intensive) 

D. graduate credit classes (e.g., 1-6 graduate credit courses of study from accredited institutions) 

E. facilitations/consultations (e.g., extended work sessions whereby staff development learning is 

applied to curricular and instructional alterations/improvements) 

 

SELECTION OF ATTENDANCE - Issues that are considered when choosing attendance at/sponsorship 

of staff development opportunities: 

A. aligns with building plans and  

B. aligns with professional growth goals 

 

INCENTIVES - Incentives that are available to encourage full participation in staff development 

programs: 

A.  per diem pay 

B. professional growth  

 

III. IMPLEMENTATION -Organizational supports that must be monitored/adjusted in order for 

implementation to occur: 

A. alignment of district philosophy, practice, understanding, coordination 

B. alignment of building philosophy, practice, understanding, coordination 

C. building climate and/or culture assessment 

D. support follow-up opportunities 

E. support teacher evaluation 

F. supported by training for administrators 

G. training for newly hired personnel 

 

98



IV. PROGRAM EVALUATION aligned with IMPROVED STUDENT LEARNING –Determine how staff 

development programs will be assessed and evaluated. 

A. student achievement 

B. educators pre/post surveys RE: knowledge and skills of educators (e.g., differentiation) 

C. self report/evaluation process 

D. teacher evaluation 

 

Related Policy : 6400P 

 

 
Rule Approved: July 12, 1999  Millard Public Schools  
Revised: December 6, 2004  Omaha, NE 

  
 

99



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Revised Staff Development Policies and Rules  

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011  

 

Department Educational Services  

 

Title and Brief  

Description:        Policy 6401- Deletion 

      
 

Action Desired: Approval  

 

 

Background: We are reviewing our current staff development policies and rules to more clearly 

define the role of staff development. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: Approval  

 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Implications of 

Adoption/Rejection: N/A 

 

Timeline:  Immediately  

 

Responsible 

Persons: Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Director of Staff Development & Instructional Improvement 

 Dr. Mark Feldhausen, Associate Superintendent of Educational Services 

 Dr. Jim Sutfin, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

100

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

 

Staff Development – Accountability 6401 

 
 

The Board of Education of the Millard Public Schools directs the Superintendent to develop and implement a 

comprehensive staff development program that supports the written, taught, and assessed curriculum, and the 

District-identified Practices that Promote Successful Student learning. Educational Services division shall be 

responsible for the development, implementation, and evaluation of said staff development program. 

 

The responsibility of the certificated staff is to be continuously involved and provide input regarding identified 

district and building staff development offerings. Certificated staff are likewise expected to apply their learnings in 

the classroom and to maintain and improve performance and proficiency. 

 

The responsibility of the principals shall be to ensure and promote staff development so that all staff engage in 

continuous improvement of knowledge and skills as they apply to the MEP. 

 

 

Policy adopted:  July 12, 1999 Millard Public Schools 

Reaffirmed: October 3, 2005 Omaha, Nebraska 

Revised: April 2, 2007 

101



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

 

Agenda Item: Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Millard 

Education Association for the 2012-13 Nurses Contract. 

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011 

 

Department General Administration / Human Resources 

 

Title and Brief 

Description: Request to commence Collective Bargaining with the MEA. 

 

Action Desired: Approval 

 

Background: The Millard Education Association represents the nurses in 

collective bargaining matters.  The current bargaining 

agreement expires July 31, 2012.  Under Nebraska law, either 

party (the District or the Union) may request the 

commencement of collective bargaining.  A copy of the letter 

from MEA requesting the commencement of bargaining for the 

FYE13 contract is attached. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: N/A 

 

Recommendations: It is recommended that the District recognize the MEA as the 

collective bargaining agent for nurses in the District; and 

further that the District meet and confer with the MEA to 

negotiate the FYE13 employment contract for said employee 

group at times and places mutually agreed to by the parties. 

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Timeline: Immediate 

 

Responsible 

Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Dr. Keith Lutz 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

102

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

Agenda Item: Appointment of Negotiations Team for Nurses Contract. 

 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011 

 

Department General Administration / Human Resources 

 

Title and Brief Appointment of Negotiations Team for the nurses contract –  

Description: The designation of the members who will serve as the District’s 

representatives during the collective bargaining process for nurses. 

 

Action Desired: Approval 

 

Background: Nebraska law provides school employees the right to bargain 

collectively with the school district in certain matters related to their 

employment contract.  The association that represents these 

employees has a team of members who meet with a similar team 

appointed by the District.  The District’s team has the task of 

negotiating the proposed terms of the collective bargaining 

agreement; however, final approval for the agreement rests with the 

Board of Education. 

 

 It is the administration’s recommendation that the district’s team this 

year be comprised of Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, Jim Sutfin and 

Chad Meisgeier, with Chad Meisgeier serving as the lead negotiator 

for the team. 

 

Options/Alternatives 

Considered: The Board could appoint different members to the team. 

 

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Board appoint Ken Fossen, Duncan 

Young, Jim Sutfin and Chad Meisgeier for the District’s negotiations 

team for collective bargaining related to the FYE13 employment 

contract for nurses; and that the Board appoint Chad Meisgeier as the 

lead negotiator for the team.   

 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

 

Timeline: Immediate 

 

Responsible 

Persons: Chad Meisgeier, Ken Fossen, Duncan Young, and Jim Sutfin 

 

Superintendent’s Signature:  ______________________________________________ 

 

103

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM: School Calendars for 2012-13 and 2013-14 
 

MEETING DATE: December 5, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Approve the school calendars for 2012-13 and 2013-14. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL    XX      DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY ____ 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

            Each year the Board of Education adopts a two-year calendar in accordance with policy 6020.    

 

The Attached report documents the work of the committee and the calendars represent the 

consensus of the calendar committee that met in November of this year.   

 

 

      

OPTIONS AND ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED: None 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the attached School Calendars for 2012-13 and 2013-14. 
 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Angelo Passarelli 

 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  

        (Signature) 

 

BOARD ACTION: 

104



November 30, 2011 

 

To:  Dr. Keith Lutz 

FR:  Angelo D. Passarelli 

RE:  Calendar Committee 

 

At your direction and that of the Board of Education, I formed the Calendar Committee.  I chose to have 

a large committee to ensure representation from all schools.   There were 20 parents, 20 teachers/staff 

and 6 administrators who served on the committee.  Attendance at all meetings was very good.  The 

committee had representation from staff and parents from across the district.  The Calendar Committee 

met on November 1, 8, 15 and 29, 2011.  We discussed many issues.  For the first three meetings, we 

divided the large committee into 4 small groups so every voice could be heard.  Each small group 

reported out to the large group at the end of the evening.     

 

The committee looked at the data including the calendars for all metro schools.  They discussed the 

calendar committee mission, calendar issues and looked at calendars that were based on the following 

board parameters: 

1. The first semester will end at winter break. 

2. The semesters will be as balanced as possible 

3. We will be out of school by Memorial Day. 

 

They were able to come to consensus on a mission that changed slightly from the previous mission. 

The purpose of the Calendar Committee is to establish a time framework to maximize learning for 
all students.  This will be accomplished by honoring the Millard Public School mission statement 
including but not limited to:   providing time for mastery of essential learner outcomes, 
assessments, and allowing adequate professional development, and planning time.  
 

They were unable to come to consensus on a calendar that met all three board parameters but did 

come to consensus on one that is very close to meeting all three.  In the end the committee 

recommendation was to allow 2 of the make-up snow days to be scheduled past Memorial Day.  The 

committee felt that the attached calendars for 2012-13 and 2013-14  were aligned with the calendar 

committee’s mission and the Millard Public Schools mission and allowed for learning time, necessary 

staff development and planning time. 

 

The strengths of the calendars include: 

1. A slightly later stating day which responded to the number of calendar comments relating to our 

early start dates. 

2. A slightly imbalanced calendar (3 days) was deemed appropriate considering that the majority 

of the assessments were scheduled in the second semester including all of the NESA testing.   

3. The committee thought that moving the comp day for conferences to the Wednesday before 

Thanksgiving was a positive idea for families of both students and teachers. 

105



4. The committee concluded that a slightly shorter winter break still fits with the calendar 

committee mission and parameters, allows for a good break for students and staff, and helps to 

achieve the Board parameter of finishing school before Memorial Day.   

5. The committee had long discussions about going to school on both Martin Luther King Jr. Day 

and President’s Day but decided that the staff development that was conducted on one or both 

of these two days was important.  We decided to leave them consistent with past years as 

nonstudent days.  The committee did think that if the board felt that it was necessary to 

schedule all four make-up snow days before Memorial Day then our second option would be to 

go to school on MLK Day and Presidents’ Day.  The other option which many found unfavorable 

would be to start school in August on a Monday.     

6. The committee discussed changing conferences but concluded that buildings should be allowed 

to try different approaches to conferences so we left them unchanged. 

7. The committee moved one day from February to March to make the Spring Break longer.   

8. The committee moved spring break to the end of 3rd quarter so that we would allow time for the 

state NESA testing window which is the last week in March through first week of May.  

9. This calendar will put graduation on Memorial Day weekend in both years.   

 

I think the committee did a fantastic job of balancing many important issues.  I think the committee 

focused on time for student learning, professional development and planning time.  I have attached the 

approved calendar for 2012-13 and the draft calendars for 2012-13 and 2013-14.  I believe that we will 

be able to make these changes to calendars for future years with some minor adjustments.  

 

 

106



AUGUST 13 Aug. 15 First Day for Students FEBRUARY 17

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 3 Sept. 3 No School - Labor Day 1

6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8

13 14 15 16 17 Oct. 16 End of First Quarter 11 12 13 14 15

20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22

27 28 29 30 31 Oct. 17-19 No School - Conferences/Work Day/Professional Development 25 26 27 28

SEPTEMBER 19 Nov. 22-23 No School - Thanksgiving Break MARCH

M T W Th F M T W Th F

3 4 5 6 7 Dec. 21 First Semester Ends 1

10 11 12 13 14 4 5 6 7 8

17 18 19 20 21 Jan. 7 Second Semester Begins 11 12 13 14 15

24 25 26 27 28 18 19 20 21 22

Jan. 21 No School - Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 25 26 27 28 29

OCTOBER  Feb. 7-8 No School - Conferences/Professional Development APRIL 17

M T W Th F 1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5 Feb. 18 No School - Presidents' Day 8 9 10 11 12

8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19

15 16 17 18 19 Mar. 15 End of Third Quarter 22 23 24 25 26

22 23 24 25 26 29 30

29 30 31 Mar. 18 No School - Teacher Work Day

NOVEMBER 20 Apr. 1-5 Spring Break MAY 21

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 May 3 Half-Day for Middle Schools (5th Grade Orientation) 1 2 3

5 6 7 8 9 6 7 8 9 10

12 13 14 15 16 May 27 Memorial Day 13 14 15 16 17

19 20 21 22 23 20 21 22 23 24

26 27 28 29 30 June 2 Graduation 27 28 29 30 31

DECEMBER 15 June 5 Last Day of School JUNE 0

M T W Th F M T W Th F

3 4 5 6 7 This calendar includes four days of school that 3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14 may be used in case of inclement weather.  If fewer 10 11 12 13 14

17 18 19 20 21 (or more) days are used, the last day of school  17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28 will be adjusted accordingly. 24 25 26 27 28

31

Quarter Dates/Student Days

JANUARY 18 Oct. 16 44 days JULY 0

M T W Th F Dec. 21 43 days 87 M T W Th F

1 2 3 4 Mar. 14 46 days 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 May 30 47 days 93 8 9 10 11 12

14 15 16 17 18 Total 180 days 15 16 17 18 19

21 22 23 24 25 22 23 24 25 26

28 29 30 31 No School for Students 29 30 31

Make-up snow days      Board Approved:  January 17, 2011

   2012-13 School Calendar

*Middle and high school calendars vary and are available at <www.mpsomaha.org>

      11-9

 12-8

107



AUGUST 13 Aug. 15 First Day for Students FEBRUARY 18

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 3 Sept. 3 No School - Labor Day 1

6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8

13 14 15 16 17 Oct. 17 End of First Quarter 11 12 13 14 15

20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22

27 28 29 30 31 Oct. 18-19 No School - Conferences/Work Day/Professional Development 25 26 27 28

SEPTEMBER 19 Nov. 21-23 No School - Thanksgiving Break MARCH

M T W Th F M T W Th F

3 4 5 6 7 Dec. 21 First Semester Ends 1

10 11 12 13 14 4 5 6 7 8

17 18 19 20 21 Jan. 3 Second Semester Begins 11 12 13 14 15

24 25 26 27 28 18 19 20 21 22

Jan. 21 No School - Martin Luther King Jr. Day 25 26 27 28 29

OCTOBER  Feb. 15 No School - Conferences/Professional Development APRIL 22

M T W Th F 1 2 3 4 5

1 2 3 4 5 Feb. 18 No School - Presidents' Day 8 9 10 11 12

8 9 10 11 12 15 16 17 18 19

15 16 17 18 19 Mar. 13 End of Third Quarter 22 23 24 25 26

22 23 24 25 26 29 30

29 30 31 Mar. 14-19 Spring Break

NOVEMBER 19 May 29 Last Day of School MAY 16

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 May 25 Graduation 1 2 3

5 6 7 8 9 6 7 8 9 10

12 13 14 15 16 13 14 15 16 17

19 20 21 22 23 20 21 22 23 24

26 27 28 29 30 27 28 29 30 31

DECEMBER 15 This calendar includes four days of school that JUNE 0

M T W Th F may be used in case of inclement weather.  If fewer M T W Th F

3 4 5 6 7 (or more) days are used, the last day of school  3 4 5 6 7

10 11 12 13 14 will be adjusted accordingly. 10 11 12 13 14

17 18 19 20 21 17 18 19 20 21

24 25 26 27 28 Quarter Dates/Student Days 24 25 26 27 28

31 Oct. 17 45 days

Dec. 21 42 days 87

JANUARY 20 Mar. 13 47 days JULY 0

M T W Th F May 22 46 days 93 M T W Th F

1 2 3 4 Total 180 days 1 2 3 4 5

7 8 9 10 11 8 9 10 11 12

14 15 16 17 18 No School for Students 15 16 17 18 19

21 22 23 24 25 Make-up snow days 22 23 24 25 26

28 29 30 31 29 30 31

   2012-13 School Calendar

*Middle and high school calendars vary and are available at <www.mpsomaha.org>

     9-8

 13-8

108



AUGUST 13 Aug. 14 First Day for Students FEBRUARY 18

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 2 Sept. 2 No School - Labor Day 3 4 5 6 7

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14

12 13 14 15 16 Oct. 16 End of First Quarter 17 18 19 20 21

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28

26 27 28 29 30 Oct. 17-18 No School - Conferences/Work Day/Professional Development

SEPTEMBER 20 Nov. 27-29 No School - Thanksgiving Break MARCH

M T W Th F M T W Th F

2 3 4 5 6 Dec. 20 First Semester Ends 3 4 5 6 7

9 10 11 12 13 10 11 12 13 14

16 17 18 19 20 Jan. 2 Second Semester Begins 17 18 19 20 21

23 24 25 26 27 24 25 26 27 28

30 Jan. 20 No School - Martin Luther King Jr. Day 31

OCTOBER  Feb. 14 No School - Conferences/Professional Development APRIL 22

M T W Th F 1 2 3 4

1 2 3 4 Feb. 17 No School - Presidents' Day 7 8 9 10 11

7 8 9 10 11 14 15 16 17 18

14 15 16 17 18 Mar. 12 End of Third Quarter 21 22 23 24 25

21 22 23 24 25 28 29 30

28 29 30 31 Mar. 13-18 Spring Break

NOVEMBER 18 May 28 Last Day of School MAY 15

M T W Th F M T W Th F

1 May 24 Graduation 1 2

4 5 6 7 8 5 6 7 8 9

11 12 13 14 15 12 13 14 15 16

18 19 20 21 22 19 20 21 22 23

25 26 27 28 29 26 27 28 29 30

DECEMBER 15 This calendar includes four days of school that JUNE 0

M T W Th F may be used in case of inclement weather.  If fewer M T W Th F

2 3 4 5 6 (or more) days are used, the last day of school  2 3 4 5 6

9 10 11 12 13 will be adjusted accordingly. 9 10 11 12 13

16 17 18 19 20 16 17 18 19 20

23 24 25 26 27 Quarter Dates/Student Days 23 24 25 26 27

30 31 Oct. 15 45 days 30

Dec. 20 42 days 87

JANUARY 21 Mar. 14 47 days JULY 0

M T W Th F May 21 46 days 93 M T W Th F

1 2 3 Total 180 days 1 2 3 4

6 7 8 9 10 7 8 9 10 11

13 14 15 16 17 No School for Students 14 15 16 17 18

20 21 22 23 24 Make-up snow days 21 22 23 24 25

27 28 29 30 31 28 29 30 31

   2013-14 School Calendar

*Middle and high school calendars vary and are available at <www.mpsomaha.org>

       8-9

 12-9

109



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: December 5, 2011 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel items: (1) Resignation Notification Incentive (RNI);  
 (2) Voluntary Separation Notice (VSP); (3) Leave of Absence 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

   

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

110



December 5, 2011 

LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

Recommend: The following Leave of Absence be accepted: 

1. Mary C. Dickerson – Special Education teacher at Andersen Middle School.  She 
is requesting a Leave of Absence for the 2012-2013 school year for personal 
reasons.  

 

111



December 5, 2011 

Resignation Notification Incentive 

Recommend: The following resignations be approved to participate in the District’s Resignation 
Notification Incentive Program: 

 
17. Sharon K. Andersen – Grade 1 teacher at Aldrich Elementary School.  She is retiring at the end 

of the 2011-2012 school year. 
18. Kathleen Lorsbach – Special Education, Resource teacher at Willowdale Elementary School.  

She is retiring at the end of the 2011/2012 school year. 
19. Marilyn I. Greene – Kindergarten teacher at Cather Elementary School.  She is retiring at the end 

of the 2011/2012 school year. 
20. Amy Friedman – Director of Communication for Millard Public Schools.  She is retiring at the 

end of the 2011/2012 school year. 
21. Cynthia Orso – Science teacher at Central Middle School. She is retiring at the end of the 

2011/2012 school year. 
22. Dan Murphy – Science teacher at Andersen Middle School.  He is retiring at the end of the 

2011/2012 school year. 
23. Helen Van Riper – Grade 5 teacher at Reeder Elementary School.  She is retiring at the end of 

the 2011/2012 school year. 
24. Jean M. Hastings – Interventionist at Ron Witt Support Service Center. She is retiring at the end 

of the 2011/2012 school year. 
25. Randal A. Langdon – Math/Science teacher at Russell Middle School. He is retiring at the end of 

the 2011-2012 school year. 
26. Carol B. Vande Kerkhoff – Language Arts teacher at Millard North High School.  She is 

resigning at the end of the 2011-2012 school year because of relocation.  
27. Brenda K. Stewart – German teacher at Millard North High School.  She is retiring at the end of 

the 2011-2012 school year. 
28. Corrine E. Holmquist – Kindergarten teacher at Holling Heights Elementary School. She is 

retiring at the end of the 2011-2012 school year. 
29. Mary Ellen Baker – Grade 3 teacher at Reeder Elementary School.  She is retiring at the end of 

the 2011-2012 school year. 
30. Dale J. Zabrocki – Physical Education teacher at Millard North Middle School. Retiring at the 

end of the 2011-2012 school year. 
31. Sharon Finnegan – Grade 1 teacher at Morton Elementary School.  Retiring at the end of the 

2011-2012 school year. 
32. Hannelore (Lori) W. Jasa – Principal at Kiewit Middle School. She is retiring at the end of the 

2011-2012 school year. 

112



December 5, 2011 
 

Voluntary Separation Program 
 

 
Recommend:  The following qualified candidates be approved to participate in the District’s 
  Voluntary Separation Program: 
 

7. Gary L. Wiemer – Math teacher at Millard North High School.  10 years of service. 
8. Daniel M. Murphy – Science teacher at Andersen Middle School.   31 years of service. 
9. Sharon K. Andersen – Grade 1 teacher at Aldrich Elementary School.  24 years of 

service. 
10. Marilyn I. Greene – Kindergarten teacher at Cather Elementary School.  15 years of 

service. 
11. Amy J. Friedman – Director of Communications for Millard Public Schools. 17 years of 

service. 
12. Helen A. Van Riper – Grade 5 teacher at Reeder Elementary School.  33 years of service. 
13. Diane R. Christenson – Language Arts teacher at Andersen Middle School.  14 years of 

service. 
14. Jean M. Hastings – District Interventionist for Millard Public Schools.  18 years of 

service. 
15. Sharon D. Finnegan – Grade 1 teacher at Morton Elementary School.  25 years of service. 
16. Corrine E. Holmquist – Kindergarten teacher at Holling Heights Elementary School.  34 

years of service. 
17. Mary Ellen Baker – Grade 3 teacher at Reeder Elementary School.  13 years of service. 
18. Dale J. Zabrocki – Physical Education teacher at Millard North Middle School.  32 years 

of service. 
 

 
 
 

113



November 19, 2011
Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current YTD 9/20/2011

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 71 62 75 85 69 69 431 -3 -2 433

Ackerman (4 unit) 79 71 88 90 97 91 516 7 8 508

Aldrich (3 unit) 61 62 90 65 66 93 437 0 -3 440

Black Elk (4 unit) 57 71 85 83 95 102 493 -1 -1 494

Bryan (3 unit) 61 57 61 66 59 62 366 2 3 363

Cather (3 unit) 67 76 72 92 82 60 449 1 0 449

Cody (2 unit) 42 29 31 25 29 37 11 204 -3 -5 209

Cottonwood (3 unit) 60 62 62 53 54 60 351 2 3 348

Disney (3 unit) 62 45 39 44 45 39 16 290 3 2 288

Ezra Millard (3 unit) 73 60 61 63 67 61 12 397 0 0 397

Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 42 39 54 46 47 47 275 -3 -1 276

Hitchcock (2 unit) 44 35 39 30 30 36 17 231 -8 -8 239

Holling Heights (3 unit) 54 61 65 62 54 59 7 362 4 1 361

Montclair (4 unit) 86 89 89 82 82 88 516 0 -2 518

Morton (3 unit) 43 55 54 50 59 62 11 334 0 0 334

Neihardt (4 unit) 79 81 100 89 93 104 546 -2 -3 549

Norris (3 unit) 63 58 71 54 48 54 348 -1 0 348

Reagan (4 unit) 131 122 114 125 108 97 697 -2 2 695

Reeder (3 unit) 98 80 93 66 97 85 14 533 0 3 530

Rockwell (3 unit) 58 54 54 59 52 56 16 349 -1 -1 349

Rohwer (3 unit) 70 89 54 67 86 80 17 463 -1 -1 464

Sandoz (3 unit) 64 48 48 51 59 39 309 0 2 307

Upchurch   (3 unit) 98 108 114 83 73 63 539 -3 -1 540

Wheeler (4 unit) 89 77 98 102 102 113 23 604 0 5 599

Willowdale (3 unit) 60 60 60 63 72 68 383 2 3 380

Totals 1712 1651 1771 1695 1725 1725 144 10423 -7 5 10418

SpEd 9/20/2011

Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 273 244 256 773 2 4 769

Beadle MS 360 328 267 26 955 -2 -2 957

Central MS 246 252 255 22 753 3 0 753

Kiewit MS 295 302 283  880 -1 -3 883

North MS 259 245 318 19 822 0 -1 823

Russell MS 295 290 289 0 874 0 2 872

MS Alternative 0 7 16 23 1 2 21

Totals 1728 1668 1684 67 5080 3 2 5078

High 9 10 11 12  --  --  --

North HS 621 619 611 591 24 2442 -3 -7 2449

South HS 509 505 494 464 33 1972 -12 -8 1980

West HS 605 593 544 506 37 2248 -14 -10 2258

Horizon HS 0 0 39 78 117 -1 -5 122

Totals 1735 1717 1688 1639 94 6779 -30 -30 6809

*Sped Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SPED 50 0 1 49

Young Adult Program 48 -1 -2 50

Preschool SPED Not SPED Total Ombudsman (Primary) 17 0 3 14

Bryan 2 35 37 Total District K-12 22397 -35 -21 22418

Cody 68 35 103 Total District PreK-12 23068 -25 18 23050

Cody Early Start 6 9 15

Disney 17 18 35

Hitchcock 27 10 37 Elementary Elementary 10418

Holling Heights 0 19 19  Middle School 5080 Middle Sch 5078

Montclair 26 12 38 High School 6779 High Sch 6809

Montclair Montessori 0 79 79 Contracted 50 Contracted 49

Neihardt 3 61 64 Young Adult 48 Young Adult 50

Norris ELL 2 17 19 Ombudsman (Primary) 17 Ombudsman (Primary) 14
Norris Montessori 0 18 18  TOTAL 22397   TOTAL 22418

Rockwell 17 1 18

Sandoz 4 14 18

Sandoz ELL 6 29 35

Wheeler 27 8 35

Homebased Infants 101
TOTAL 671

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Culinary 10 7 8 25

Education 9 7 24  40

Entrepreneurship 4 7 14 25
Finance 7 1 6 14
Health Services 26 19 25  70
Dist/Log Mgmt 4 4 5 2 15
Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 30

11/19/2011 9/20/2011

10423

22,148
22,432 22,418 22,432

22,397

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

22,500

Sep-10 Aug-11 Sep-11 Oct-11 Nov-11

K-12 Enrollment 2011-12

114



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Abbott 25 21 17 20 24 23
23 21 19 22 23 23
23 20 19 22 22 23

20 21
Total Students 71 62 75 85 69 69 431 -3 -2 433 431
Total Teachers 3 3 4 4 3 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 23.67 20.7 18.8 21.7 23.0 23.0 22 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 20 23 22 22 24 21
20 24 23 23 24 25
19 24 22 23 24 21
20 21 22 25 24

Total Students 79 71 88 90 97 91 516 7 8 508 516
Total Teachers 4 3 4 4 4 4 23 23
Classroom Avg 19.8 23.7 22.0 22.5 24.3 22.8 22 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 20 21 23 20 23 22
21 21 23 23 20 24
20 20 22 22 23 23

22 24
Total Students 61 62 90 65 66 93 437 0 -3 440 437
Total Teachers 3 3 4 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 20.3 20.7 22.3 21.7 22.0 23.7 23 23

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 19 23 21 23 23 26
19 23 21 23 24 25
19 25 22 17 24 24

21 20 24 27

Total Students 57 71 85 83 95 102 493 -1 -1 494 493
Total Teachers 3 3 4 4 4 4 22 22
Classroom Avg 19.0 23.7 21.3 20.8 23.8 25.5 22 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 21 19 20 21 20 19
20 19 20 22 20 22
20 19 21 23 19 21

Total Students 61 57 61 66 59 62 366 2 3 363 366
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 20.3 19.0 20.3 22.0 19.7 20.7 20 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 21 13 14 25 25 16 23 24 23 17 17 22
23 15 12 25 25 24 23 25 15 22

Total Students 44 28 26 50 50 16 23 48 46 42 32 44 449 1 0 449 449
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 22 22
Classroom Avg 22.0 14.0 13.0 25.0 25.0 16.0 23.0 24.0 23.0 21.0 16.0 22.0 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Cody 21 15 16 11 14 20 6
21 14 15 14 15 17 5

Total Students 42 29 31 25 29 37 11 204 -3 -5 209 193
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 21.0 14.5 15.5 12.5 14.5 18.5 5.5 15 16

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 20 21 21 26 27 20
20 20 21 27 27 19
20 21 20 21

Total Students 60 62 62 53 54 60 351 2 3 348 351
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 2 3 16 16
Classroom Avg 20.0 20.7 20.7 26.5 27.0 20.0 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Disney 21 23 19 22 23 20 8
21 22 20 22 22 19 8
20

Total Students 62 45 39 44 45 39 16 290 3 2 288 274
Total Teachers 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 15 13
Classroom Avg 20.67 22.50 19.50 22.00 22.50 19.50 8 19 21

115



Class

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment SPED

Ezra Millard 18 21 21 22 23 20 8
18 20 20 20 22 20 4
18 19 20 21 22 21
19

Total Students 73 60 61 63 67 61 12 397 0 0 397 385
Total Teachers 4 3 3 3 3 3 2 21 19
Classroom Avg 18.3 20.0 20.3 21.0 22.3 20.3 6 19 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 21 20 18 23 23 23
21 19 17 23 24 24

19
Total Students 42 39 54 46 47 47 275 -3 -1 276 275
Total Teachers 2 2 3 2 2 2 13 13
Classroom Avg 21.0 19.5 18.0 23.0 23.5 23.5 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Hitchcock 22 16 18 15 14 18 17
22 19 21 15 16 18

Total Students 44 35 39 30 30 36 17 231 -8 -8 239 214
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 14 12
Classroom Avg 22.0 17.5 19.5 15.0 15.0 18.0 17.0 17 18

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Holling Heights 19 19 23 20 18 20 4
18 23 19 21 18 19 3
17 19 23 21 18 20

Total Students 54 61 65 62 54 59 7 362 4 1 361 355
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 18.0 20.3 21.7 20.7 18.0 19.7 3.5 18 20

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 18 23 20 21 20 23 16 22 22
20 22 22 23 18 23 16 19 22

16 22 19
22 23
22
22

Total Students 38 45 42 44 38 46 48 129 86 516 0 -2 518 516
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 19.0 22.5 21.0 22.0 19.0 23.0 16.0 21.5 21.5 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Morton 21 16 18 14 18 20 4
22 19 18 18 21 21 7

20 18 18 20 21

Total Students 43 55 54 50 59 62 11 334 0 0 334 323
Total Teachers 2 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 19 17
Classroom Avg 21.5 19.5 18.0 16.7 19.7 20.7 5.5 18 19

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 20 20 20 22 24 25
19 19 19 23 22 27
20 21 21 23 24 25
20 21 20 21 23 27

20
Total Students 79 81 100 89 93 104 546 -2 -3 549 546
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 19.8 20.3 20.0 22.3 23.3 26.0 23 23

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 20 18 24 17 19 19 13 21 13
19 18 24 21 18 17 11 21 16

19

Total Students 39 36 48 38 37 36 24 61 29 348 -1 0 348 348
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 19.5 18.0 24.0 19.0 18.5 18.0 12.0 20.3 14.5 18 18

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 22 22 22 23 22 24
22 20 23 22 23 25
21 22 23 22 21 24
22 22 23 23 21 24
22 22 23 23 21
22 14 12

Total Students 131 122 114 125 108 97 697 -2 2 695 697
Total Teachers 6 6 5 6 5 4 32 32
Classroom Avg 21.8 21.6 22.8 20.8 22.0 24.3 22 22

116



SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 20 24 22 25 20 7
19 19 22 21 22 21 7
20 21 24 23 25 22
19 20 23 25 22
20

Total Students 98 80 93 66 97 85 14 533 0 3 530 519
Total Teachers 5 4 4 3 4 4 2 26 24
Classroom Avg 19.7 20.0 23.3 21.5 24.0 21.0 7.0 21 22

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 20 17 19 20 26 19 9
18 19 16 19 26 18 7
20 18 19 20 19

Total Students 58 54 54 59 52 56 16 349 -1 -1 349 333
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 3 2 19 17
Classroom Avg 19.3 18.0 17.5 19.7 26.0 18.7 8.0 18 20

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 23 22 18 22 21 28 9
24 24 18 23 21 25 8
23 24 18 22 22 27

19 22

Total Students 70 89 54 67 86 80 17 463 -1 -1 464 446
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 4 3 2 22 20
Classroom Avg 23.3 22.3 18.0 22.3 21.5 26.7 8.0 21 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 21 15 16 17 20 19
22 17 15 17 20 20
21 16 17 17 19

Total Students 64 48 48 51 59 39 309 0 2 307 309
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 2 17 17
Classroom Avg 21.3 16.0 16.0 17.0 19.7 19.5 18 18

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 20 23 23 23 24 22
19 20 23 21 25 21
20 23 23 20 24 20
19 19 23 19
20 23 22

Total Students 98 108 114 83 73 63 539 -3 -1 540 539
Total Teachers 5 5 5 4 3 3 25 25
Classroom Avg 19.6 21.6 22.8 20.8 24.3 21.0 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 24 20 22 21 23 24 9
21 20 20 21 26 20 8
20 18 18 19 26 22 6
24 19 20 21 27 24

18 20 23

Total Students 89 77 98 102 102 113 23 604 0 5 599 581
Total Teachers 4 4 5 5 4 5 3 30 27
Classroom Avg 22.3 19.3 19.6 20.3 25.5 22.6 7.7 20 22

Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 20 20 20 22 23 23
20 20 20 21 25 23
20 20 20 20 24 22

Total Students 60 60 60 63 72 68 383 2 3 380 383
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 20.0 20.0 20.0 21.0 24.0 22.7 21 21

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1712 1651 1771 1695 1725 1725 66 70 54 55 60 144 10423 -7 5 10418 10279
Teachers 85 79 83 79 76 75 9 6 21 513 492
Classroom Avg 20.1 20.9 21.3 21.5 22.7 23.0 6.9 20.32 20.892

SpEd Current Current YTD 9/20/2011
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 273 244 256 773 2 4 769
Beadle MS 360 328 267 26 955 -2 -2 957
Central MS 246 252 255 22 753 3 0 753
Kiewit MS 295 302 283 880 -1 -3 883

North MS 259 245 318 19 822 0 -1 823
Russell MS 295 290 289 874 0 2 872
MS Alternative 0 7 16 23 1 2 21
Totals 1728 1668 1684 67 5080 3 2 5078

9 10 11 12
North HS 621 619 611 591 24 2442 -3 -7 2449
South HS 509 505 494 464 33 1972 -12 -8 1980
West HS 605 593 544 506 37 2248 -14 -10 2258
Horizon HS 0 0 39 78 117 -1 -5 122
Totals 1735 1717 1688 1639 94 6779 -30 -30 6809

Contracted SPED 50 0 1 49
Young Adult Program 48 -1 -2 50
Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 17 0 3 14

Total District Enrollment 22397 -35 -21 22418

117



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Risk Management Report 

 

MEETING DATE: December 5, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Risk Management Report – A report on the insurance coverage maintained by the 

District. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval              Discussion             Information Only      x                                .       

 

BACKGROUND: Don Kamins, Bill Johnson, and Bill Unger of the Harry A. Koch Company 

(HAKCO) are the District’s insurance consultants.  Some or all of them will be 

present to answer any questions board members may have. 

 

  

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: n/a 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: HAKCO and Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

118

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MPS School Board Meeting:  
December 5, 2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2011 Commercial Insurance Risk  
Management Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

119



 

 

 
 

Millard Public Schools 
2011 Commercial Insurance Risk Management Report 

 
Millard Public Schools’ property and casualty insurance program renewed in June 2011 with 
positive program and premium results.  We marketed the workers’ compensation, multi-line 
package, and School Board Legal Liability (see exhibit 1), which resulted in two major changes. 
 
1) Your workers compensation was marketed and moved from United Heartland Insurance Co. 

to Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. The incumbent insurer wanted a significant premium 
increase of over $200,000, compared to Liberty Mutual which allowed us to maintain your 
present cost of risk. 

 
2) The Liability insurance, including School Board Legal Liability, General Liability, Fiduciary 

Liability, and Medical Malpractice Liability, were consolidated into a Self-Insured Retention 
Program underwritten by United Educators Insurance Company. The potential savings to 
Millard Public Schools is $294,997, assuming your average liability claim costs remain at or 
below the normal $75,000 average incurred per year. The self-insured retention is $100,000 
on any one loss, inclusive of costs of defending claims. However, defense expenses do not 
reduce the $5,000,000 available annual aggregate limit. 

 
 
While the “cost of risk” continues to be positive for Millard Public Schools overall, we did have a 
small increase of premium in the workers’ compensation line.  This was due to adverse loss 
ratios during the past three years, which result in an increase in your “Experience Modification 
Rating Factor”, which went from 1.00 to 1.05. The WC premium rate cost per $100 of payroll in 
2010 was .641, and in 2011 it is .667 (see historical trend analysis exhibit 2). 
 
Despite the increase in the workers’ compensation area, Millard Public Schools overall cost of 
risk remains below national peer average comparisons by 3.2% (Risk and Insurance 
Management Society, Inc. 2010 Report).   
 
 The 2011 year risk management activities were also significant in time and results.  Below is a 
highlight of these activities: 
 
 Comprehensive study of your ten year loss trends to illustrate the benefit of accepting the 

new Self-Insured Retention Program. 
 An update of the Risk Analysis specific to the GL, Auto, SBLL, Fiduciary and WC, which 

included numerous meetings with MPS administrators.  
 Semi-annual claim reviews were held with Ken Fossen and Chad Meisgeier. 
 Loss control inspections of several schools. 

120



 

 

 
 Liberty Mutual Initial Loss Prevention Orientation meetings were held with the MPS 

Human Resource staff, and reviewed MPS’ loss control programs. 
 Held ongoing loss control awareness meetings with administrators, Sodexo managers, 

and staff.        
 Reviewed MPS’s contractual risk transfer with selected vendors, suppliers, and service 

contractors.   
 

           
           Nebraska Political Subdivision Tort Liability Act:  

The following is a reminder of the protection afforded to Nebraska Political Subdivisions as 
respects to settlement of damage claims:  
 
1) The law applies only to political subdivisions as defined under the Nebraska Political 
Subdivision Tort Liability Act   § 13-926 (See attached Exhibit 3) 
 $1,000,000 any one person 
 $5,000,000 for all claimants in any single occurrence 
 

2) The limitation of liability is only applicable to claims within Nebraska jurisdictional laws, but it 
does not apply to tort claims under federal laws. Most Employment Practice Liability, Employee 
Benefit Liability and Fiduciary Liability claims are subject to federal law, and thus not protected 
by the Nebraska Political Subdivision Tort Liability Act. 
 
 3) Any liability claim activity occurring outside of Nebraska is an unlimited exposure. 
 
 4) The purchasing of higher insured limits has no impact on the capitation of damage afforded 
under the Tort Liability Act. 

 
 

The Future Market: 
 
While the 2011 insurance market remained stable, most market indicators predict upward 
pressure on premiums for 2012. These changes result from poor underwriting results caused by 
a significant increase in the number and costs of natural disasters occurring throughout the 
United States, and also from the lack of investment returns necessary to sustain a soft market. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
Don Kamins   Bill Johnson   Bill Unger      

           Vice President           Sr. Vice President            Vice President 
 
 

121



 
 
School District #17 of Douglas County 
Millard Public School District  
 
Comparison of 2010 vs. 2011 Insurance Premiums 
 

Coverage 2010-11 
Actual 

Premium 

2011-12 
Quoted 

Premium 
   

Property $301,105 $301,290 
Inland Marine 
(mobile equipment floater) 

$6,093 $6,093 

Renovation Project Construction 
Blanket Installation  

$1,500 $3,667 

Builders Risk – new schools $7,210 $0 
Boiler & Machinery $28,624 $28,624 
Crime $8,510 $9,100 
Automobile – Physical Damage $28,140 $29,096 
General Liability incl. EBL $224,038 $182,096* 
Automobile - Liability $128,188 Included in GL 
Umbrella Excess $118,031 Included in GL 
School Leaders E&O $20,842 Included in GL 
Nurses Professional $11,227 Included in GL 
Berkley Risk Administrators (TPA) NA $25,000 minimum 

premium 
Cyber Liability: Network Security, 
Privacy Liability, Internet Liability  

$24,237 $23,847 

Fiduciary Liability $6,941 $7,222 
Workers Compensation $804,108 $823,470 
Pollution/Mold Liability $36,519 $35,535 
Sub Total $1,755,313 $1,475,040 
Harry A. Koch Co Consulting Fee $45,414 $46,197 
Total Cost with Consulting Fee $1,800,727 $1,521,237 
 
 
* does not include losses within the Self Insured Retention of $100,000 each occurrence 
 

122

Websterm
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1



 
 

School District #17 of Douglas County 
Millard Public School District  
 
Marketing Summary 
 

Carrier Response 
  

ACE Declined; does not fit their appetite 
Acuity Declined; operations 
Amerisafe Declined; operations 
Chubb Declined; operations 
C.N.A. Declined; operations 
EMC Not competitive; quoted Work Comp with $150,000 and 

$250,000 deductibles 
Hartford Not competitive; quoted Work Comp at $1,358,407 
Indiana Insurance Declined; not competitive 
Liberty Mutual Work Comp quotation received ($823,470) 
Sentry Not competitive; quoted Work Comp with $250,000 

deductible 
Travelers Renewal quotation received 
United Educators Casualty quotation received ($182,379) 
United Heartland Not competitive; quoted Work Comp at $1,087,288; also 

provided option with $250,000 deductible 
Zurich Declined; operations 

 
 
 

 

123

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 1



Millard Public School District

Effective Date 
6-1 to 6-1 # of Claims

# open 
claims Audited Payroll

Employee 
Count EMOD

Earned 
Premium Incurred Loss Loss Ratio

Premium Per 
Employee

COR - 
$payroll

Loss Per 
Employee  

2002 164  $       82,676,072 2488 0.91  $    435,760.00  $       541,629 124%  $               175 0.52707%  $              218 

2003 168  $       91,771,454 2528 0.94  $    555,301.00  $       515,257 93%  $               220 0.60509%  $              204 
2004 168  $       88,593,089 2538 0.94  $    638,223.00  $       234,014 37%  $               251 0.72040%  $                92 
2005 138  $       93,624,588 2548 1.03  $    792,959.00  $       311,017 39%  $               311 0.84696%  $              122 
2006 158  $       99,092,691 2621 1.02  $    708,796.00  $       425,374 60%  $               270 0.71529%  $              162 
2007 158  $     106,873,987 2685 0.92  $    718,848.00  $       521,618 73%  $               268 0.67261%  $              194 
2008 108  $     117,888,488 3277 0.93  $    554,234.00  $       422,065 76%  $               169 0.47013%  $              129 
2009 110  $     121,508,215 3185 1.01  $    606,965.00  $       563,667 93%  $               191 0.49953%  $              177 
2010 107  $     126,328,836 3165 1.00  $    809,043.00  $    1,680,434 208%  $               256 0.64043%  $              531 
2011 61  $     123,330,839 3454 1.05  $    823,470.00  $       123,658 15%  $               238 0.66769%  $                36 

*  Losses valued as of 11-1-2011
* 2002 - 2007 =  
Liberty Mutual

* 2008 - 2010 = 
United Heartland   52,637,015.00 
* 2011  = Liberty 
Mutual

0.00000%

0.20000%

0.40000%

0.60000%

0.80000%

1.00000%

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

MPS - premium/payroll

Cost of Risk

124

Websterm
Typewritten Text
Exhibit 2



Nebraska

Chapter 13. Cities, Counties, and Other Political
Subdivisions

Article 9. Political Subdivisions Tort Claims Act

Current through the 2011 legislative session

§ 13-926.  Recovery  under  act; limitation;  additional
sources for recovery

The total amount recoverable under the Political
Subdivisions Tort Claims Act for claims arising out of an
occurrence after November 16, 1985, shall be limited to:

(1) One million dollars for any person for any number of
claims arising out of a single occurrence; and

(2) Five million  dollars  for all claims  arising  out of a
single occurrence.

If the damages sustained  by an innocent third party
pursuant to section 13-911 are not fully recoverable from
one or more  political  subdivisions  due  to the  limitations
in this section, additional sources for recovery shall be as
follows: First, any offsetting payments specified in
subsection (3)  of section  13-911  shall  be reduced  to the
extent necessary  to fully compensate  the innocent  third
party; and second, if such reduction is insufficient to fully
compensate the innocent third party, the right of
reimbursement granted to the political subdivision  in
subsection (2)  of section  13-911  shall  be reduced  to the
extent necessary  to fully compensate  the innocent  third
party.

Source:

Laws 1985, Second Spec. Sess., LB 14, § 2;
R.S.Supp.,1986, § 23-2419.01; Laws 1996, LB 952, § 2.

Note:

The damage  cap embodied  in this  section  applies  to all
political subdivisions  of the State of Nebraska,  which
together create a single class of tort-feasors to which the
Legislature has chosen to apply uniform rules and
procedures governing  tort liability.  By limiting  the tort
liability exposure  of all political  subdivisions  in exactly
the same  manner,  the Legislature  has enacted  a general
law which does not contravene the constitutional
prohibition of special legislation. Staley v. City of
Omaha, 271 Neb. 543, 713 N.W.2d 457 (2006).

The fact that an insurer provided liability insurance
coverage for that  portion  of a county's  potential  liability
for a single occurrence which exceeded its legal liability

to a single  claimant  cannot be viewed  as creating  any
rights on the part of injured persons to recover more from
the insurer  than its  insured was legally  obligated to pay.
Molina v. American Alternative Ins. Corp., 270 Neb. 218,
699 N.W.2d 415 (2005).

When a county's  "legal  obligation"  to an injured  party
has been paid  by the county  and  its  underlying  insurer,
the county's  "legal obligation  to pay" has been fully
satisfied under subsection  (1) of this section,  and an
insurer providing the county with a commercial umbrella
policy could  have no contractual  liability  to an injured
party for that portion of his or her proven damages which
exceeded the statutory cap. Molina v. American
Alternative Ins. Corp.,  270 Neb. 218, 699 N.W.2d  415
(2005).

125

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text

Websterm
Typewritten Text
The Harry A. Koch Co. - Exhibit 3


	Board Packet December 5, 2011
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes November 21, 2011
	Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	G.1. Approval of Policy 5200 - Pupil Services - Attendance
	Policy 5200
	H.1. Receive and Place on File the Audit Report for 2010-2011
	H.2. First Reading of Policy 4300 - Human Resources - Professional Growth/Staff Development
	Policy 4300
	Rule 4300.1
	Rule 4300.2
	H.3.  First Reading of Policy 6400 - Educational Services - Staff Development
	Policy 6400
	H.4. Approval of Rule 5200.1 - Pupil Services - Attendance, Tardiness, and Excessive Absenteeism
	Rule 5200.1
	H.5. Delete rule 6400.1 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Staff Development - Staff Development Framework
	Rule 6400.1
	H.6. Delete Policy 6401 - Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment - Staff Development:  Accountability
	Policy 6401
	H.7. Enter into Collective Bargaining Negotiations with the Millard Education Association for the 2012-2013 Nurses Contract
	H.8.  Appointment of Negotiations Team for Nurses Contract
	H.9. Approval of Revised School Calendar for 2012-2013 and 2013-2014
	Calendar Committee Recommendations
	Approved 2012-2013 Calendar
	Draft  2012-2013 Calendar
	Draft 2013-2014
	H.10. Approval of Personnel Actions:  Leave of Absence, Resignation Notification Incentive, and Voluntary Separation Program
	Leave of Absence
	Resignation Notification Incentive
	Voluntary Separation Program
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Risk Management Report



